Schedule

Meeting of the
Pierpont Community & Technical College
Board of Governors

August 24, 2010

Falcon Center Board Room

Fairmont, WV
11:30 A.M. Finance Committee Board Room
Members: ‘ Staff Resource:
Kyle Hamilton (Chair) Dale Bradley
Rick Pruitte
Linda Aman
Dixie Copley
James E. Griffin
*12:30 P.M. Opening Convocation Colebank Gymnasium
1:30 P.M. Off Campus Facilities Committee Board Room
Members: Staff Resource:
Leslie Lovett (Chair) Jeani Hawkins
Linda Aman
Jeff Tucker
Beverly Jones
Sharon Shaffer
1:30 P.M. Marketing Committee Conference Room 3
Members: Staff Resource:
Dixie Copley (Chair) Sarah Hensley
Earl McConnell
Ryan Houser
**2:00 P.M. Full Board Meeting Falcon Center Board Room

* Board Members are invited to participate in this event sponsored by Student Affairs.

**Time approximate, depending on the length of committees meeting.



Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors
Meeting of August 24, 2010
Call to Order
1. Opening Comment
2. Last Call for Public Comment Sign Up
3. Approval of Minutes (June 15, 2010) Tab 1 — Action Item

Operation Reports

Faculty Assembly Report (Brian Floyd)

Classified Staff Report (Mary Jo Rutherford)

Student Government Report (Jaron Hollida) Tab 2 - Informational
Off Campus Programs Report (Jeani Hawkins)

Athletic Association Report (Rusty Elliott)

President’s Report (Doreen Larson)

AP

Committee of the Whole
1. Financial Report (Dale Bradley) Tab 3 - Informational
2. Legislative Auditor Report 07/01/07-06/30/08 (Dalie Bradiey) Tab 4 — Informational
Committee Reports

1. Finance Committee (Kyle Hamilton)

e Classified Staff Mercer Step Increase (Dale Bradley) Tab 5 — Informational
e FY 2011-Update of Capital Projects (Dale Bradley) Tab 6 — Action Item

e FY 2012 State Appropriation Request (Dale Bradley) Tab 7 - Informational
e FY 2012 Capital Projects Request (Dale Bradley) Tab 8 — Action Item

2. Off Campus Operations Committee (Leslie Lovett)
3. Marketing Committee (Dixie Copley)

New Business
1. Board Retreat

Possible Location: Stonewall Resort (Roanoke, WV)
Possible Dates: October 25-29

Old Business

Public Comment



Possible Executive Session

moved pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)2A of the WV Code that the Board shall go in to Executive
Session to discuss personnel and personnel matters, which if discussed in public might adversely affect
the reputation of any person.

moved pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)9 of the WV Code that the Board shall go into Executive
Session to consider matters involving or affecting the purchase, sale or lease of property, advance
construction planning, the investment of public funds or other matters involving commercial
competition, which if made public, might adversely affect the financial or other interest of the state or
any political subdivision.

Next Meeting date is Tuesday, September 21, 2010 at the Falcon Center Board Room.






Pierpont Community & Technical College
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
MINUTES
June 15, 2010

Call to Order

A meeting of the Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors was
held on June 15, 2010 beginning at 2:00 p.m. in Falcon Center Board Room. Present at
the meeting were Board Members: Beverly Jones, James Griffin, Dixie Copley, Ryan
Houser, Earl McConnell, Rick Pruitte, Leslie Lovett, and Eugene Weaver. Absent were
Jeff Tucker and Kyle Hamilton.

Chair James Griffin called the meeting to order.

Approval of Minutes

Chair Jim Griffin moved the minutes of the May 18, 2010 meeting be approved.
Motion carried.

Constitnent Reports

No report for the Faculty Assembly Report.

Mary Jo Rutherford presented the Classified Staff Report.
Alicia Nieman presented the Student Government Report.
Jeani Hawkins presented the Off Campus Program Report.
Bun Perkinson presented the Foundation Report.

Devanna Corley presented the Alumni Association Report.
Rusty Elliott presented the Athletic Association Report.

President’s Report
No Report.

Finance Report

Dale Bradley delivered the report on the Pierpont Community & Technical College
Unrestricted and Restricted Funds and Fund Manager Budgets for FY 2011.

FY 2010-2011 Capital Projects

James Decker provided a summary of FY 2010 Capital Projects and their status.

Intent to Plan — Policy 54

Jennifer Weist presented Policy 54 — Bookstore Policy and reqﬁested that the Board
approve it for public comment as required by the rulemaking guidelines. Dixie Copley

moved that Policy 54 be placed on public comment through August 31, 2010. Motion
carried.



Program Reviews

Jennifer Weist presented program reviews for Applied Design, Emergency Medical
Services and Criminal Justice. She stated that each program has been reviewed by the
advisory committee, program faculty, Dean of Human Services, Vice President for
Administration and President and were found to be of high quality and in line with the
economic and workforce needs of the region. The recommendation to the Board is that
all programs be continued at their current levels. The motion was made to approve the
continuation of all three programs at the current level of activity. Motion carried.

- Off Campus Operations Committee

Leslie Lovett reported that the committee plans on visiting the Braxton County facility
during the summer months and that they are also working with the Director of Off
Campus Programs and Jim Decker of the Physical Plant to get signs replaced at off
campus sites.

Finance Committee

Finance Committee member Rick Pruitte moved that the Board approve the FY 2010
Beginning Net Asset Values for Pierpont Community & Technical College and Fairmont
State University as defined by the Separation of Assets Agreement approved in
December 2009. Motion carried.

Rick Pruitte moved to approve the Education & General Capital Project plan for FY
2011. Motion carried.

Rick Pruitte moved to approve the chargeback agreement for fiscal year 2011 with the
condition that the items currently unresolved will be resolved and documented for audit
purposes prior to submission of any actual chargeback payment transactions occurring for
the 2011 fiscal year. It should be noted that the chargeback value of items in dispute
currently amount to $40,940.50 and may require an adjustment to the FY 2011
Unrestricted Budget. Motion carried.

Rick Pruitte moved to approve the Unrestricted Education & General and Fund Manager
Funds Budgets for FY 2011. Motion carried.

Marketing Committee
No report.

Nominating Committee
Nominating Committee member Sharon Shaffer moved that the Board re-elect its current
officers: James Griffin, Chair; Dixie Copley, Vice Chair; and Beverly Jones as Secretary
to another term. No other nominations were made. Motion carried.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:55 p.m.






Student Government Fall Elections 2010
Elections: Tuesday, September 14
10am-7pm  On-line
Nominations Begin: August 21 during Welcome Weekend
Deadline to Be Nominated: Sept. 9, 12:30PM in 128 HB.

The following positions can only be voted on & filled by Pierpont students:
Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors: This is
normally included in the Spring SG Elections.

Pierpont Representatives (Will elect 2)
Pierpont House of Representatives (Will elect 4)

The following positions can be voted on & filled by both FSU & Pierpont students:
Vice President: This is normally included in the Spring Election.
Treasurer: This is normally included in the Spring Election. Anticipating a
vacancy in this position.

Freshman Senator (Will elect 3)
Sophomore Senator (Will elect 1) This position is normally included in the
Spring Election.

Who is eligible to run for office? All full time students, with at least a 2.0
cumulative GPA, are eligible to run for an SG position. Some positions are insfitution
and class rank specific. Students running for Executive Office must already have
served in SG for one year prior to their nomination and cannot be freshmen.

Who is eligible to vote? All students enrolled in at least one credit hour are
eligible to take part in Student Government elections. The on-line ballot will have a
few variations according to the voting student’s institution and class rank. For
example: The Pierpont Ballot wili only have the positions that Pierpont students are
eligible to vote. In addition to their respective institution, students will only be voting
for their class senators. For example: Only Freshmen can vote for the Freshman
Senator posts.

Nomination Process:

How can a student be nominated?:

Attend an 5G Meeting. an interested student can nominate themselves or accept
their nomination from another student, faculty or staff member, at a regulariy
scheduled SG meeting.

When: Thursday, Aug. 26, Sept. 2 or Sept. 9 at 12:30PM.

Where: 128 Hardway

File wy/ the 5G Advisor. an interested student can also file for a particular position
with the Advisor to Student Government in her office- 305 Colebank.

Required Forms:. All nominees must also fill out and sign a Nominee Form.
Required Meeting: Nominees must also attend a Nominee Meeting on Sept. 2 or
Sept. 9at 12:30 in 128 Hardway during the regularly scheduled SG meeting.

The deadline for nomination is Thursday, Sept. 9™ at 12:30 in 128 Hardway.



Terms Of Office:

Terms for Fall Elected SG Members: Terms for the Pierpont Reps, Pierpont House of
Reps & Freshmen Senator begin following the Fall Election when new Student
Government members are inducted and culminate at the end of the Spring 2011
semester. The exceptions to this rule are the Pierpont BOG position and the other
positions normally included in the Spring Elections- VP, Treasurer & Sophomore
Senators. The BOG position continues until the end of June. The terms for the
other positions normally included in the Spring Elections- VP, Treasurer &
Sophomore Senator- will end the day the Spring 2011 Election takes place.

How can the Board of Governors, faculty and staff help?

Spread the word on the importance of being invoived in the student leadership on
campus. Nominate students for office! Please let the students know they must
attend an SG Meeting or visit the Advisor to Student Government in order to accept
their nomination and fill out the Nominee Form.

How would a Board of Governors member, faculty or staff person
nominate a student?

Fill out the Nominee Form and deliver or e-mail them to the SG Advisor, Laurie
Johnston, in 305 Colebank or to ljochnston@fairmontstate.edu.

Let the student know they have been nominated so they can accept their
nomination, sign the Nominee Form, and attend a Nominee Meeting.

Laurie Johnston Advisor to Student Government 367-4705






Board of Governors
Financial Report FY 2011
Pierpont Community & Technical College
as of July 22, 2010

Unrestricted Funds: o

The projected effect on net assets at June 30, 2011 as of July 22, 2010, inclusive of state federal
stimulus stabilization funds, is $362,722. This is a slight improvement ($3,321) from the
approved FY 2011 Unrestricted Budget. This improvement is due primarily to adjustments made
to Fund Manager Funds that were missed in the generation of the initial FY 2011 Unrestricted
Budget. As of this report date, the institution is less than a month into FY 2011 and
approximately 34% of projected tuition and fees revenue has been realized. The mid-July
payroli has accounted for the majority of expenditures recorded o date. The primary budget
changes that impacted the budget from the initial FY 2011 Unrestricted Budget are as follows:

e Operating Revenues:
o Increase by $98,434 primarily due the changes made to the Fund Manager
Funds.
s Expenditure Budget:
o Increased by $101,724 primarily due to changes made to the Fund Manager
Funds.
+ Non-Operating Revenues
o No budget changes
s Excludes Operating
o Improved by $6,611 due the recognition of Indirect Cost Recoveries.

Restricted Funds:
The budget balance reflects a deficit plan of ($729,598). This deficit is covered by grant funds

received prior to July 1, 2010, The primary funding sources in this restricted fund are financial
aid and state and federal grants.

Notes to Financial Report:

The look of the FY 2011 Finance Report has been modified slightly from the FY 2010 version.
There is an additional “Operating Revenue” category identified as “Auxiliary Enterprise
Revenue”. These revenues are paid by Pierpont Students and include their Falcon Center Fee,
their Athletics Fee and their Facilities Fee (Bond Debt Service) which are passed through
Pierpont accounts on to Auxiliary Enterprises controlled by Fairmont State University. Due to
theses student fees only passing through Plerpont accounts, they had not been included in
previous finance reports. Since these fees are paid by Pierpont Students, Pierpont’s Board of
Governor's should be aware of them and therefore have been added to the Finance Report.
There is a corresponding “Operating Expenses” category identified as “Assessment for Auxiliary
Fees & Debt Services”. The budget for this expense category is equal to the corresponding
revenue budget reflecting that they are purely passing through Pierpont accounts.

A second related change is to the “Operating Expenses” category identified as “Assess for
Activity, Cap. & Debt Ser Costs”. This same expense category was identified on last year’s (FY
2010) finance reports as “Assessment for Tuition, Aux, & Capital Costs”, With the recognition of



the Pierpont Student Auxiliary activities described above, the title was changed to more
accurately reflect the expense category. The revenues to cover this expense category are
reported within the “Operating Revenues” category “Tuition and Fees”. Fees associated with
this expense include the Health Services Fee, the Student Programs Fee {Used by Student
Government), Infrastructure Fee, and System Education and General Capital Fees.



Current Year

OPERATING REVENUES

COPERATING EXFENSES

NONOPERATING
REVENUES
{EXPENSES)

EXCLUDE OFERATING
ACCOUNT

COPERATING
INCOMEIL.OSS

BUDGET BALANCE

Pierpont Community & Technical College
Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

2011 PriorYear 2610

Tuition and Fees

Facully Services Revenue
Ausilisry Enterprise Revenue
Operafing Cosls Ravenue
Support Sewvices Revenue
Other Operaling Revenus

Sublotal:

Salaries

Benefits

Student financial ald-scholarships
Utllities

Supplies and Other Services
Equipment Expensa

Fees retained by the Commission
Assessment for Facully Services
Assessrment for Support Services

Assess for Activity, Cap, & Debt Ser Costs
Assassment for Auxllfary Fees & Deht Service

Assessment for Operaling Cosls
Subtotal:

State Appropriations

State Appro, Federal ARRA Stimulus Backfil

Gifts 8
Invesiment Income
Reappropriated Siate Funding

Subtotal:

Excluda - Assats

Exclede - Transfers for Financiat Ald Malch

Exctude - Indlrect Cost Racoverlss
Exclude - Teansfers - Other

Subtotal:

PERSONNEL BUDGET SAVINGS

PROJECTED EFFECT ON NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30

PROJECTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year

PROJECTED NET ASSETS - End of Year

FZRPRO3 Funds %
712212010

Period July Current Unrestricted
Actual Te
Budgeted Autual Budgeted
Current Year Curfent Year Current Year
7,723,361.50 2,664,404.13 34.50
1,502,589.00 0.00 0.00
1,135,737.00 486,140,890 42.80
208,753.12 0.00 0.00
408,810.26 0.00 0.00
253,071.00 4.020.00 459
14,233,321.88 3,154,665.03 28,08
5,852,870.00 132,639.42 235
1,219,134.69 22.657.20 1.28
305,588.00 (364.00) -0.12
0.00 496,98 0.00
1,699,858.09 28,023.36 166
139,211.55 0.00 0.00
104,610.00 0.00 0.00
4,268,259,00 0.00 090
3,693.883.84 0,00 0,00
1,436,593.00 0.00 D.o0
1,135,737.00 0.00 0.00
2,384,200.70 0.00 0.00
19,239,854.47 183,262.96 095
7.683,748.00 0.00 0.00
B59,684.00 0.00 n.an
1,000,00 0.00 0.60
97,194.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
B,441,636.00 0.00 0.00
.00 0.00
{78,9582,00) 0.00 0.00
8,611.79 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
{72,380.21) 0.00 0.00
(B406,533.00)  2,971,302.07 2741
362,722,70 2,971,302.07 81917
0,00
362,722.70
2,466,436.86
3,849,219.56

Page 1

=



Current Year

OPERATING REVENUES

Plerpont Community & Technical College
Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

2011 PriorYear 2010

TFuitlon and Fees

Facully Services Revenue
Operating Cosls Revenue

Support Services Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

" Subtotal:

OPERATING EXPENSES

NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)

EXCLUDE OPERATING
AGCOUNT

OPERATING
INCONE/LOSS

BUDGET BALANCE

Salaries

Benefits

Student financlal ald-scholarships
Utilidles

Supplies and Other Services
Equipment Expense

Loan cancellation and write-offs
Faos refalned by the Cammissfon
Assessment for Facully Services
Assessment for Support Services
Assess for Aclivity, Cap. & Debt Ser Cosls
Assessment far Operaling Costs

Subtotal:

State Appropilations

State Fiscal Stabilization Funds
Investment income

Reapproprialed State Funding

Subtotal:

Exclude - Assels

Exclude - Transfars for Financlal Ald Mateh
Exclude - Transfers - Other

Subtotal:

PERSONNEL BUDGET SAVINGS

PROJECTED EFFEGT ON NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30

PROJECTED NET ASSETS » Beglnning of Year

PROJECTED MET ASSETS - End of Year

FZRPRO3 Funds %
7/2212010

Petlod July Current Unrestricted
Plerpont C ane TC - Presldent

Actual To
Budgeted Actual Budgsfed
Current Year Cugrent Year Cuent Year
6,897,862.00 2,516,201.93 36.48
1.502,580.00 0.a0 0,00
208,753.12 0.00 0.00
409,810.26 0.00 0.00
123,083.00 0.00 0.00
9,142,087.38 2,516,291.33 27.52
5,478,040.00 126,454.60 23
1,152,335,00 22,000.21 185
305,588.00 {354.00) 112
0.00 96,98
1.097,002.85 24,070.42 219
57,041.63 0.00 0,00
0.00 0.00
104,619.00 0.00 0.00
1,268,259.00 0.00 0.00
3,893,863.94 0.00 0.00
1.436,513.00 0.00 000
2,384,200.70 0.00 000
17,218,367.12 172,217.21 4.00
7,683,748.00 .08 0.00
659.634.00 0.00 0.00
97,194.00 0.00 0.00
000 0.00
8,440,636.00 . 0,00 0.00
0.00 0.00
{78.892.00) 0.0D0 0.00
0.00 0.0
{78,982.00} 0.00 0.00
{8,076,269,74) 2,344, 074.12 -20.02
285,374.26 2,344.074.12 821,40
0.00
28537426
2,953,506.92
3,244,88118

Page 1



Pierpont Community & Technical College

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses
CurrentYear 20114 Prior Year 2010 Period July Current Unrestricted

Pierpent € and TG Fund Managers

Actual Te
Budgeted Actual Budgeted
Current Year Current Year Gurrent Year
OPERATING REVENUES Tuilion and Fess 825,499,850 148,112,680 17.94
Other Operating Revanue 120,988.00 4,020.00 3.09
Subtotal; : 955,487.50 152,132.80 1592
COPERATING EXPENSES . Salaries - 174,830.00 6,184.82 3.54 -
Benefits 26,795.69 B847.99 242
Bupplies and Olher Senvices 601,955,294 4,212,094 0.70
Equipment Expense $2,169.92 0.00 0.00
Lozn cancellation and wrile-ofis 0.0 0.00
Subtotak 885,750.85 11,045,75 125
NONOPERATING Gifis 1,000,080 0.00 4.00
REVENUES [EXPENSES)
Subtotal: +,800.00 0.00 0.00
EXCLUDE OPERATING  Exclude - Assels 0.00 0.00
ACCOUNT Exclwie - Indirect Cost Recoveies 6,611.79 0,00 0.00
. Exclude - Transfers - Other 0.00 0.00
“Subtotal: 6,611.79 0.00 0.00
OPERATING §9,736.65 141,087.05 202.31
INGOME/LOSS
BUDGET BALANCE 77,348.44 141,087.05 182,40
PERSONNEL BUDGET SAVINGS 0.08
PROJECGTED EFFECT ON NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30 7734844
PROJECTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year ' 452,050.04
PROJECTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 520,359.38
FZRPRO3 Funds %
712212010

Page 1



Pierpont Community and Technical College

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Jul Current Restricted

Current Year 2011

OPERATING REVENUES

Sub Total

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sub Total

NONOPERATING REVENUES
{EXPENSES)

Sub Total:

EXCLUDE OPERATING

Sub Total:

OPERATING
INCOME/LOSS

BUDGET BALANCE

Prior Year

Tultion and Fees

Federal Grants and Contracts
State/l.ocal Grants and Contracls
Private Grants and Contracts
Other Operating Revenues

Salaries

Benefits

Student Financial Ald-Scholarships
Ulilities

Supplles and Other Services
Equipment Expense

Loan Cancellation and Write Off

Federal Pell Grant Revenues

Exclude - Assets

Exclude - Transfers for Fin Aid Maich
Exclude - Indirect Cost Recoveries
Exclude - Transfers - Other

PROJECTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year

PROJECTED NET ASSETS - End of Year

8/13/2010

Page 1

2010

LEVEL 2
Budgeted Actual Current
Current Year Year
101,000.00 1,735.63
14,127,178.46 2,326.90
2,400,453.31 391,602.04
567,000.00 38,462.48
50,500.00 216.00
17,246,131.77 434,343.05
826,924.25 24,880.80
138,298.67 3,020.25
22,234,369.00 1,440.48
100.00 6.38
751,848.58 2,576.99
B5,288.82 19,860.46
0.00 0.00
24,036,825.32 51,794.36
6,000,000.00 -6,490.00
6,000,000.00 -6,490.00
-11,281.43 -1,800.00
78,992.00 0.00
-6,611.79 0.00
61,098.78 -1,800.00
-6,790,697.55 382,548.69
-729,598.77 374,258.69

1,459,063.12

729,464.35

Pierpont Jul 26 2010 Restricted Manual (2}.xls

Actual to
Budgeted
Current Year

1.72%
0.02%
16.31%
B.78%
0.43%
2.52%

3.01%
2.18%
0.01%
6.38%
0.24%
23.28%
0.00%
0.22%

-0.11%

-0.11%

15.96%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

-2.85%

-5.63%

-51.30%






Pierpont Community and Technical College
Board of Governors

August 24, 2010
Item: Legislative Audit Report for the period July 1, 2007 —June 30, 2008
Committee: Committee of the Whole

Information [tem:
Staff Member: Dale Bradley
Background:

The Legislative Audit {Compliance Audit) began in December of 2008 and was completed in May 2010.
The final report of findings and recommendations along with responses to these recommendations are
attached.

The Legislative Audit staff was complimentary of the internal controls over all and was very pleased
with the support from staff during their field work. Also attached are comments made during the final
report to Legislative Post Audit Subcommittee chaired by the Senate President Earl Ray Tomblin and by
Speaker Richard Thompson.

—_—____%-———-——

PCTC BOG August 2010 ~ Legislative Audit Report Page 1



Good afternmoon Mr. President, Speaker, and members of the Committee;

My name is William Spencer and X am here to present to you 3 of the findings from
our audit of Fairmont State University. The objectives of this audit of Fairmont State
University was to determine if the wniversity complied v.vith the provisions of the Higher
Education Policy and ether governing instruments as they pertain to fiscal matters. We
have performed a review of the financial fransactions of Fairmont State University for the

period of July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008.

Here representing Fairmont State University is Mr. Rick Porto, Vice President for
Administrative and Fiscal Affaixs, who is here today to address any questions from the
Committee. Mr. Porto aswell as all of Fairmont State University’s staff maintained a great
working environment for our team as well as implementing our finding recommendations
timely, and in most instances, the problems were corrected prior to the date of this audit
report. Fairmont State University’s compliance with the laws, rules, and regulations that
govern them were exceptional compared to some of the other higher education institutions

that we previously audited.



Presentation to the Legislative Post Audit Sub-Committee
July 20, 2010

Presented by Rick Porto, Vice President
for Administrative and Fiscal Affairs
for Fairmont State University

President Tomblin, Speaker Thompson, Mr. Helmick, Mr. Hall, Mr. White, Mr. Armstead:

I would like to publicly thank Mr. Aaron Allred, Ms. Stacy Sneed, Mr. Ethelbert Scott, Mr.
Wiliiam Spencer, and the staff auditors Mr. Elmo Phillips, Ms. Annamarie Short, Mr.
David Abraham, Mr. Jay Eckhart, and Ms. Gina Adams for a job that was well done.

The audit team on campus supervised by Mr. William Spencer, was very professional,
thorough in their reviews, cordial, friendly, personable, and at times provided an
atmosphere of humor and laughter. In my 33 years of experience in managing higher
education financial business in the State of West Virginia, | am of the opinion this audit
was a very positive experience for the staff of Fairmont State University and Pierpont
Community and Technical College. | can say it was a rewarding experience for me both

professionally and personally. It was good to get to know and work with staff of the
Legislative Auditor's Office.

Of the eleven (11) findings and recommendations we feel that:

s Five () of them (findings 2, 4, 6, 7, and 10) have been corrected and measures
put in place to prevent repeat conditions.

* Four (4) of them (findings 5, 8, 9, and 11) will require central administrative staff
to exercise more due diligence in processing to prevent future incidents of these
findings occurring in the future.

s Two (2) of them (findings 1, and 3) will require central administrative staff to
review and improve processes, update procedures, and provide trainings for
University and Community and Technical College staff. This will occur in the fall
of 2010 period.

We thank the Legislative Audit staff for their support and mentorship during the past
year and a half, for their compliments on the effectiveness of our operations, and for
their hard work.

s .|
Presentation to Legislative Audit Committee - july 20, 2010 Page 1



From: William Spencer [mailto:wspencer@mail.wvnet.edu]
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 8:24 AM

To: Porto, Enrico

Subject: RE: Presentation to the Legislative Post Audit Sub.docx

Thank you also for your kind words. | stated the first day | met you that in my audits | always go in with
the attitude that I'm trying to help the spending unit, not to hurt them. it is rewarding to feel at the end
of this long process that the objective was reached. It has been a pleasure to work with you and your
staff. The attitude of the spending unit usually reflects upper management and everyone was kind,
courteous, and went out of their way to make us comfortable. | know we can be a nuisance; however,
all of your staff got us anything we asked for timely. | will attach a copy of the presentation to this email
and whenever ['m in the area | will stop by for lunch. Again Thank you!!!



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY

Lact b haterrd Conre st g ol R
Ueapprooed Comrse ooy Chavpod to Stdiass o senas

Drcpzore Mot Phade T,

B . WESTVIRGINIA LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR

" POST AUDIT DIVISION




Wl LEGISLATIVE BOST AUDIT SUBCOMBA(TTEE

- " n - e Cra 3

. Senate - , House ..
Presudent Ear! Ray Tomblln, Chalrman o D Speaker Rlchard Thompson, Chairman
. < T . HarryKeith Whlte T
Tm Armstead




WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE
Joint Committee on Government and Finance

Stacy L. Sneed, CPA, CICA, Director Area Code {304)
Legislative Post Audit Divislon Phone: (304) 347-4880
Building 1, Room W- 329 Fax: (304) 347-4889

1900 Kanawha Blvd. East
Charleston, WV 25305-0610

The Joint Committee on Government and Finance:

In compliance with the provisions of the W.Va. Code §4-2, as amended, ‘we have conducted a post audit of
Fairmant State University for the period of July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.

Our audit disclosed certain findings, which are detailed in this report. The Spending Unit's management
responded to the audit findings; we have included the responses fallowing each finding.

Resbectfully submitted,

oy e

Stacy L. Sneed, CPA, CICA, Director
Legislative Post Audit Division

v

SLS/cdo



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 - JUNE 30, 2008

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ......oveosanen

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ....... !

L Ty Ty T PP T P PY T T T T T T TP T TP ppary

saenanras AR ISP IR TEN AR PSSR AR TS AR NS LY TT TP Y T SR P TP PR Y P TE T

Y P

INTRODUCTION ..ccviiiimmnnmanmssnnissrsssassssnsssssssacnsessananens PP ey 11

POST AUDIT AUTHORITY............. CresuesseseRe e e san RS st R s e e eessermsR s oS reBR SR SRSAbRSRS eerereemreeoeeresessenaraseans -10-
BACKGROUND. .....coo oo eeeenene \eerees Rt e s heen st e e eeaeaet et ste et et s st st e e perarasns e vessrns vrreen 10 -

. SPENDING UNIT CONTACTS ccoseccsunessernesenn eamanreemiees st st

AUDIT SCOPE.....coicensne

- F..
CLLTIILT] (X1 CEITITERL LT ITRTEELTE Y Y AEASSIANSTASRSANSEb SR n R e

. OBJECTIVES AND METHODOLOGIES:..juuui.nisbissessisssssisasssassmessmossssinessscssssseses SO T

CONCLUSIONS 1.evurvaresesssssmarssnsivivessessssisssmussssssssassnsnssssasiassessbassnssesmse soesesmestssnssmtessessssssessesssssmoes

EXIT CONFERENCE «..vevveorensersonennns vteresebes st sasstr st s s senr s meaassent e reverereeresresseepssearessareasenes voreeen- 13 -

FUND LISTING ....cconvmrmmrrancsiscssnneensnn,

-14-

REPORTABLE COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS....ccccrrrraccraesanerans PRy, | P

Finding1  Lack of Internal Controls OVer Cash RECEIPLS ..o wmuuuosesiresescsressermeesecsereesseseresssseses

Finding 2 Unaﬁﬁrc:wed Course Fees Charged to StUdent’s ACCOUNTS vu.vceeresmvarcessssessnsassonsass

Finding 3 Deposits Not Made Timely..

------------------ trureraserarerevnenes ae cenare L LTT AT IR )

Finding 4 Assets Not Properly Recorded on Inventory Listing ............... earaamimsser et asn s b nn s

Finding 5 Lack of Supporting Docume}\tation ..........................................................................

~16~

Finding 6 Documenting and Safeguarding EVIdente .....evvecveeeseeerens st et st e e aan -28-

Finding 7 Unauthorized Refunds ........

------------------------ T T PR TP Y PR T TP P PPy PRy

Finding 8 Incorrect Course Fees Charged to StUdents....vummmian e -38-

Finding 9 Timely Submission of Leave

Finding 10  Leave BalaNCe. e eerreeeens

Finding11  Misclassified Expenditures..

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

......................................................................................

------------------------------------------------------------------------ Savaarsnrannee

Certificate of Director, Legislative Post Audit DIVISION: «.c.cciesvessssssmssnssssssasersansansen ST {3



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 — JUNE 30, 2008

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ' -

Post Audit Subcommittee: . N

Compliance

We have audited the Fairmont State University’s (FSU) compliance with the laws, rules, and regulations
applicable for the fiscal year 2008. Compliance with the requirements referred to above is the
responsibility of FSU’s management. Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the FSU’s compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compllance requirements referred to
above could have a material effect on FSU. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
FSU’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determihation of FSU’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, except for noncompliance noted in the findings of this report, FSU complied, in all
material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that are applicable for fiscal year
2008.

Internal Contral

Management of F5U is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to abave. In planning and perferming our audit,
we considered FSU’s internal control over compliance to determine the auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the FSU’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contro! does

not allow management or employees, in the norimal course of performing their functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weckness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in‘internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliznce requirement will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be deficlencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance. We
did not identify deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material
weakness.

-2-

T



This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Post Audit Subcommittee, the
members of the WV Legislature, and management of FSU. However, once released by the Post Audit
Subcommittee, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully Submitted,

vy f chaief

Stacy L. Sneed, CPA, Director
Legislative Post Audit Division

July 8,2010



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 - JUNE 30, 2008

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Finding & tack of internal Controls Over Cash Receipts

We noted the following lack of internal controls over cash receipts: -

FSU does not have an institution-wide policy and/or procedure for the control and
documentation of receipts.

Pre-numbered receipts are not issued for some cash collections.

Some collection points are-not recording cash and cash equivalents on a daily basis detailing at
minimum the date received, -payee, check number or cash receipt number, amount, and
purpose.

Mail Jogs are not completed to document receipts.

Some department collections are not deposited intact.

Money is collected but not counted until the next business day. -

Monies are not recorded on a standardized cash count sheet or tracking sheet.

The numbers of all tickets printed and sold are not tracked on a standardized ticket sheet.

FSU managernent does not properly 6versee or control soinie of the Imprest Funds maintained
by individual departtents.

We noted three out of 12 or 25% of the cash count locations totaling 5389 32 were not properly
safeguarding their securities, .

Media Guides are professionally printed programs that tell about the school, specific sports

* prograviis; ‘and thié coaches, Media Guidés are produced for Football, Men_’s Basketball,

Women’s Basketball, and Volleyball; however, there are no accounting/reconciliation records
produced or maintained to reconcile or account for Media Gunde revenue ln the amount of
$700.00.

F5U is not performing reconciliations on some receipts of cash and cash equivaients.

We notéd one parking lot attendant collects all’ of the parking lot monies m the amount of
$390.00.

We noted one unauthorized Imprest Fund operated by the Student Health Department.

Auditor's Recommendation -

We recommend FSU develop an institution-wide policy and procedure for the collection,

counting, safeguarding, and depositing revénues ak the Imprest Fund level and all cash collection,

points. We also ‘recommend that FSU management pérform random audits to review the
Imprest Funds maintained by individual departments. In addition, we recommend that FSU

. comply with W.Va. Code §5A-8-0 and strengthen intefnal controls over cash colléctions at all

cash colleétion points and Imprest Funds by !mplementing cash count sheats, t:cket tracking
sheets, cash and cash equlvalent logs, and mail Iogs

We also recommend FSU strengthen controls aver the Student Health Department in the event
they begin collecting monies again.

We also recommend FSU comply with W.Va. Code §5A-8-9 by properly safeguarding all monies.
4=

vhi



In addition, we recommend FSU comply with the W.Va. Code §5A-8-9 by pre-numbering all
Media Guides. This way they can segregate and account for all of the Media Guides that sold
and not sold. In addition, when students are selling the Media Guides they will be able to
determine the amount of Media Guides the student has on hand to sell and the amount of
monies that needs to be remitted to the Athletic Department. Also, accounting for any FSU
puhlications sold in the same manner as the recommendation for the aforementioned media
guides. We also recommend FSU segregate key: -accounting functions, such as: (1) receiving
payments, {2) processing/fifling orders, (3) recording payments in the accountmg records, and -
{4) reconciling accounting records to deposits.

Spending Unit’s Response
Fairmont State University will refine the gxisting Procedure for Depositing Cash Check Receipts

to assure an audit trail is maintained. We will also provide training to staff who are responsible
for collecting and depositing monies and are responsible for Imprest Funds. i

See Pages 16-20

Finding 2 Unapproved Course Fees Charged to Student Accounts

We noted two out of 50 or 4%.of the items tested where students were charged a Graphics
Technology Course fees in the amount of 5246.00 that was not approved by.FSU’s Board. of
Governors {(BOG). .

Auditor's Recommendation . o -

We recommend FSU comply with W.Va. Code §188-10-1{e) and have the fee approved by FSU's
BOG's or cease. collecting the fee. .

Spending Unit’s Response

The Graphics Course Fee is no Ionger assessed and stopped being assessed effective Summer
Term 2009,

'See Page 21

Finding 3 Deposits Not Made Timely

L

We noted 26 out of 149 or 17% of all revenues tested in the amount of $284,490.10 were not
deposited within 24 hours of receipts as required by the W.Va. Code §12-2-2. Of the
$284,493.10 deposited, actual cash receipts totaled $5284,495.10 leaving a difference of $5.00
not deposited by the Student Health Departrnent

We noted three out of 12 or 25% of the cash count Iocatluns totalmg $3,028.91 were not
making deposits in accordance with W. Va. Code §12-2-2,

We noted a total of $2,330.16 in recenpts excluding start-up cash and monies due to the
foundation that were not deposited timely.

We noted monies on hand being held in a safe in the amount of SSUD 00 from FSU's
Procurement Office that was not deposited in accordance with the W.Va. Code.

-5.



*°  We noted Parking Garage monies totaling $198.75 in cash on hand in the Public Safaty Office
that had not been deposited as required by W.Va. Code.

* We noted eight out of 10 or 80% of gate receipts tested In the amount of $7,568.00 were not
deposited within 24 hours of receipt as required by the W.Va. Code.

Auditor’s Recommendation

We recommend that FSU comply with W, Va Code §12-2-2 by depositing all monies within 24.
hours. .

Spending Unit’s Response

As stated in our response to Finding 1, we will be doing an additional update to the Procedure
for Depos:tmg Cash/Check Receipts. We will also provide training to the departments to comply
with W.Va. Code §12-2-2.
SeePages 22 & 23
Findinig4 - Asset not properly recorded on Inventory Listing “
* We noted one out of 105 or 1% of the transactions tested where a DS4000 Expansion Unit
Model 81 was purchased on 09/06/2007 with an original cost of $7,034.00; howeéver, it was not

recorded on FSU’s Fixed Asset Inventory listing.

Auditor’'s Recommendation

‘We recommend FSU comply with the Welst Virginia Highér Education Purchasing Procedures
Manual and properly account for all assets in thelr possession. We also recommend ESU.
develop a policy and procedure to ensure all assets are properly coded and recorded,

Spending Unit's Response

In regard to the orie item found, it was not properly coded as a capltal asset purchase and
therefore, notidentified as a equipment to-be capitalized. We coiisider this an'isolated incident.

See Pages 24 & 25 ) ; e ;-
Finding5 -+ - ' - Lack of supporting documentation

» We noted 12 out of 58 or 21% of the employees tested totaling $1,741.38 where FSU failed to
maintain adequate tax withholding documentation. - '

¢ We noted six out of 15 or 40% of the employees tested totaling $523.16 where FSU failed to
maintain proper supporting documentation in the employees’ ‘payroll file.

» We noted three out of 148 or 2% of the transactions tested totaling $276. 95 where the .

e Speriding Unit failed to mainfain adequate documentatlon suppnrtmg the ‘amount of monies
received for deposit.

* We noted one out of 58 or 2% of the employees tested where FSU did not properly calculate
WV State withholding taxes according to the WVIT-104 maintained in the employee s file in the

_amount of $31.76.



Auditor’s Recommendation

We recommend that FSU comply with W.Va. Code §5A-8-9 and §21-5C-5 and maintain any
supporting documentation that accompanies the transactions.

Spending Unit’s Response

In regard to the three deposits totaling $276.95, departments will be reminded follow the
Procedure for Depositing Cash/Check Receipts. This procedure instructs the departments to .
“attach supporting documentation to yellow validated deposit ticket and keep for your files.”

The deposit procedures were updated in February 2010 and sent electronically in a campus wide
e-mail,

We feel that the majority of our &epartments comply with the procedure.

In regard to the payroll issues, the payroll office will now request employees 1o complete new
employese forms — [-9, federal withholding and state withholding when they are hired full-time
from a part-time position. These forms will be placed in the full-time employee file maintained
by the payrolt / benefit office.

See Pages 268& 27
Finding 6 Documenting and Safeguarciing Evidence

» We noted no evidence documentation had been produced or ‘maintained for the ;;eriod under
audit; therefore, we were unabie to audit the Public Safety Office’s (PSO) evidence maintenance
and securlty

Auditor’s Recommendation
We recommend FSU develop written policies and procedures for cidcurﬁenting: safeguarding,

and subsequently either dgstroying, disposing, forfeiting, or releasing evidence. We also
recommend FSU comply with W.Va: Code §5A-8-9 and strenigthen controls over evidence.

Spending Unit's Response

Written procedures and appropriate forms for the tracking of evidence will be maintained in the
future.

See Pages 28-34
Finding 7 Unauthéi"!zed Refunds

* We noted five out of 50 or 10% of the items tested where students’ were refunded for non-
refundable course fees equaling $272.10.

Auditor’s Recommeéndation

We recommend FSU comply with appropriate FSU Catalogue and discontinue refunding course
fees or update their catalogue to reflect the change. '
-7



Spending Unit’s Response

The 2010-2011 catalog has been updated to remove course fees from the non-refundable
listing.

See Pages 35-37

Finding 8 Incarrect Course Fees Charged to Students’

= We noted four out of 50 or 8% of the items tested where FSU overcharged students for fees in
the amount of $46.00.

- Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend FSU follow the appropriate FSU catalogue -and the appropriate FSU Fee
Planning Schedule for Special Fees and Charges by charging the correct amount for courses. In
addition, we recommend FSU perform continuous testing of the mformatlon system to ensure
students are charged correctly.

Sgendmg‘Umt’s Response

Research indicates that these fees were incorrectly attached to individual courses and
inadvertently charged to the students. These have been corrected and staff makes avery effort
to make sure that this does not happen.

See Page38

Finding 9 Timely Submission of Leave

* We noted three out of 19 or 16% of employees tested In which employees turned in Leave
Requests on average four months after the Annual and Sick Leave was taken.

- Auditor’s Recnmrr;endation

We recommend FSU comply with the Employee Handbook and the Leave Request Forms by
requiring all employees to submit Annual Leave requests in' advance and to submit Sick Leave
Requests immediately following return to work. In addition, we recommend FSU put in place a
policy and procedure in the employee handbook that informs the employees the correct
procedure for requesting and taking leave,

Spending Unit's Response

The employee handbook is being revised by a committee and we have asked that the
instructions at the top of the Leave Request form be added to the handbook.

We will do our best to make sure employees and supervisors are submitting Annual Leave in
advance and Sick Leave requests immediately following the employee’s return to work,

See Pages 39 & 40

vhit



Finding 10 Leave Balance Finding

+ We noted one out of 30 or 3% of employees tested where the employee’s sick leave balance
was negative as of June 30, 2008.

s We also noted one out of 30 or 3% of employees tested where their leave was improperly
calculated.

Auditor Recommendation

We recommend FSU comply with procedural rule Title 133 Series 38 of the Higher Education
Policy Commission and have employees not take leave before it is accrued. We also recommend
FSU comply with procedural rule Title 133 Series 38 of the Higher Education Policy Commission
and Annual Leave should be reduced in order to cover the Sick Leave overdrawn balance or an

. employee should be required.to go off payroll. In addition, we recommend FSU maintain
aceurate leave balances. Also, we recommend FSU comply with W.Va. Code §12-3-13.

1,
' (-

Sgend-ing Unit’s Response _

in the future, Annual / Sick leave negative balances will be adjusted prior.to the monthly leave
close.

See Pages 41 & 42 X . .,
Finding 11 Misclassified Expenditures

s We noted six out of 198 or 3% of the items tested were coded incorrectly in the amount of
$1,175.98. T -

Auditor’s Recommendation
We recommend that FSU comply with the West Virginia State Budget Office’s Expenditure

Schedule Instructions by ensuring that transactions are classified with the appropriate object
codes.

Spending Unit's Response .
Fairmont State University concurs and will comply.

See Pages 43 & 44



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 - JUNE 30, 2008

INTRODUCTION

POST AUDIT AUTHORITY

This is the report on the post audit of Fairmont State University. This audit was conducted pursuant to
W.Va, Code §4-2, as amended, which requires the Legislative Auditor to “make post audits of the
revenues and funds of the spending units of the state government, at least once every two years, if
practicable, o report any misapplication of state funds or erroneous, extravagant or unfawful
expenditures by any spending unit, to ascertain facts and to make recommendations to the Legislature
concerning post audit findings, the revenues and expenditures of the State and of the organization and
functions of the State and its $pending units.”

BACKGROUND

Fairmont State University is a comprehensive, multi-site, public, coeducational institution. Founded in
1865 as a private school, Fairmont State University became a state institution in 1867 as a normal
scthool, In 1931, the name was changed to Fairmont State Teachers College and in 1943 to Fairmont
State College. In 1974 a community college component was implemented which earned independent
accreditation in 2003. The Legislature changed the name of the institution to Fairmont State University
in 2004. In 2006, the community and technical college (renamed Pierpont Community & Technical
College) became a Division of the University.

FSU, with an enrollment of approximately 4,090, offers a quality education in a diverse and supportive
learning environment that fosters individual growth, professional and career development, lifelong
learning, global understanding and a commitment to excellence in academic and community pursuits.
Serving the citizenry of north-central West Virginia and beyond, Fairmont State University is a student-
centered institution of first choice among students who desire a flexible and relevant learning
experience. The University provides a well-rounded education, enabling students to gain the knowledge
and skills needed for self-fulfilling, responsible-citizenship and employability in a rapidly changing global
environment. Additional information on academic programs is available at www.fairmontstate.edu.

Pierpont Community and Technical College of FSU has an anroliment of approximately 2,852 students
and offers 50 assaciate degrees, certificate degrees and skill-set certificates. Pierpont C&TC serves a

thirteen county region of West Virginia, including Barbour, Braxton, -Calhoun, Doddr@dge, Gilmer,

Harrison, Lewis, Marion, Monangalia, Preston, Randolph, Taylor and Upshur counties.

-10 -



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 - JUNE 30, 2008

SPENDING UNIT CONTACTS
FOR EXAMINATICN COVERING PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2007 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2008

R AR ITVEE S (S - PR —————————y o -1 [« -1y S 1Ty R (o Lo s B L)

Dr. Charles McClain........ FreerNE iR P NseRs o nmre s mneaenas ansasnren Interim Presjdent (Auguét 1, 2008 — June 29, 2009}
ERTico POMO ..coeeecccrensscrarnrans persassmne st rasarsneesssaan s rennans Vice Président for Administllative and Fiscal Affairs
Carolyn Fletcher....... ......................... e rerneasasesnenenssanessseas na sanarensanesraneseneeras srereeresasaa . ....Director of Accounting
Monica COCHIAN ....cocmirnciinicsnrsssre s e messesssenns Dlrector of Procurement
TCINA3 EWINE..erecerrreeiresnns renrreeserncasens PRSI LSRR E S s br s aar T anareeEEe R Er T d e eernue et A bhbe ........... v .Direqtor of Payroll
Deborah StHes..... e cinenmaincsemesnsinns ioeessiysiepesseant st st ia s raes s At TR nt s S rast o Budget Director

-11-



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 - JUNE 30, 2008

AUDIT SCOPE

We have audited Falrmont State University funds for the period of July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008,
Our audit scope included a review of internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts or grant agreements. The audit was conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States.

OBJECTIVES AND METHODOLOGIES

i

The objectives of our post audit were to audit the revenues and expenditures of the spending unit, to
report any misapplication of state funds or erroneous, extravagant, or unlawful expenditures by any
spending unit that we find, to ascertain facts, and to make recommendations to the Legislature
concerning post audit findings, the revenues and expenditures of the state.and of the organization, and
functions of the state and its spending units. We were to determine whether expenditure and revenue
transactions were related to the spending: unit’s programs, were reasonable, and were recorded
properly inthe accounting systems, Additionally, we were to examine the spending unit’s records and
Internal contro! over transactions and to evaluate its compliance with applicable State laws, rules, and
regulations.

In preparation for our testing, we studied legislation, applicable W.Va. Code sections, applicable rules
and regulations, and policies of the spending unit. Provisions that we considered significant were
documented and compliance with those requirements was verified by interview, observations of the
spending unit’s operations, and through inspections of documents and records. We also tested
transactions and performed other. auditing procedures that we considered necessary to achieve our
objectives., Additionally, we reviewed the budget, studied financial trends, and interviewed spending
unit personnel to obtain an understanding of the programs and the internal controls. in planning and
conducting our post audit, we focused on the major financial-related areas of operations based on
assessments of materiality and risk.

We did not audit the spending unit's federal financial assistance programs for compliance with federal
laws and regulations because the State of West Virginia engages an independent accounting firm to
annually audit such programs administered by State agencies.

A non-statistical sampling approach was used. Qur samples of transactions were designed to provide_
conclusions about the validity of transactions, as well as internal control and compliance attributes.
Transactions were selected for testing randomly and using professional judgment.

Fairmont State University’s written response to the significant deficiencies and material weaknesses
identified in our audit has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
University and, accordingly, we express no opinion.

Fairmont State University's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal controi. Internal control is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance that objectives

-12-



pertaining to the reliability of financial records, effectiveness and efficiency of operations including
safeguarding of assets, and compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations are achieved.
Because of inherent limitations in internal control, errors or fraud may nevertheless occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of internal control to future periods are subject to the risk
that conditions may change or compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Our reports are designed to assist the Post Audit Subcommittee in exercising its legislative oversight

function and to provide constructive recommendations for improving State operations. As a result, our,

reports generally do not address activities we reviewed that are fuictioning properly.

CONCLUSIONS

This report includes findings regarding significant instances of noncompliance with applicable laws,
rules, or regulations. Other less significant findings that did not warrant-inclusion in this report were
communicated to the University.

EXIT CONFERENCE . '

Woe discussed this report with management of Fairmont State University.on July 8, 2020. All findings and
recommendations were reviewed and discussed. Management’s response has been included at the end
of each finding.

-13-



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 — JUNE 30, 2008

FUND LISTING

We have completed a post audit of Fairmont State University. The examination covers the period of July
1, 2007 through June 30, 2008. . .

GENERAL REVEI-NIUE_ACCOUNT
The following accounts were maintained by Fairmont State University:

Fund Fund

Number . ' Name

0360........ esrsusLisi bt ataats s bt s s ehRs seaRa R eat shbeanabenrn nenanans General Administration

B0 o oireirrirnecsresnsnesscrrenas smneesseresssesssssasnsanasarsssss ST General Administration Pierpont

SPECIAL REVENUE ACCOUNTS

Fairmont State University maintained the following special revenue accounts. These accounts represent
funds from specific activities as required by law or administrative regulations. These funds were
deposited with the State Treasurer in the following special revenue accounts:

Fund ; Fund

Number . Name

BAAE ..oocreiriinnnreiiorasssnstisrnsnnanesssse s sernenssess Payroll Clearing

GABT eerteerrerrernesnnans reareresastensanrests S Revenue Clearing

490 ..iiiiiriissiensrensssnasnscermsnranesanansarsasssssteness Tuition & Required E&G Fees

QO ...ttt rness e sssse s anesrame s s emas Tuition & Required E&G Fees Pierpont

AAG] ......oorrrarrirrsrrersssisrmnsnearassanasensesisaerans Auxiliary & Auxiliary Capital Fees

4933 ... iiienncsrarienereene st raesrer i ranseeasas Auxiliary & Auxiliary Capital Fees Pierpont

ABGD st e et Education & General Capital Fees

G994 ... eeriieeerereneannane reenrases et s asannnens Education & General Capital Fees Pierpont

BB ..revriiseniaenseersarseeesn e e st saeanesssene Gifts, Grants & Donations {Non-Federal)

E L1 Gifts, Grants & Donations {Non-Federal) Pierpont
Payroll Clearing Fund

This fund is a special revenue fund used for the clearing of payroll (governed by W.Va, Code §12-3- 12a).

Tuition & Required E & G Fees Fund
This fund comprises other collections, fees, licenses, and investment earnings used to suppeort all tuition -
and required educational and general fees (governed by W.Va. Code §18B-10-1). '

Auxillary & Auxiliary Capital Fees Fund
This fund comprises other collections, fees, licenses, and investment earnings to fund all auxiliary and
auxiliary capital fees (governed by W.Va. Code §18B-10- 1).

Education & General Capital Fees Fund

This fund comprises other collections, fees, licenses, and investment earnings to fund all required and
general capital fees (governed by W.Va, Code §18B- 10- 1).

-14-



Gifts, Grants & Donations (Non-Federal) Fund
This fund comprises other collections, fees, licenses, and investment earnings to fund state, local and
private grants, gifts, and contracts (governed by W.Va. Code §18- 10- 1.

FEDERAL ACCOUNT
Fairmont State University maintained the following accounts that were funded with Federal sources:
Fund Fund
Number - Name
8769 vccrrsrecnerisrreammnessesssssessasessasssnes aasnssesssnasessanes ... Federal Grants/Contracts
BBOL oo reeecremssesasssasstssienmscms e anssasensanera e et sasnensenen Federal Grants/Contracts Pierpont

Federal Grants/Contracts Fund (8769) )
This fund is a Federal fund to account for all federal grants and contracts activity (governed by W.Va.
Code §18B- 4-4}.

-15-



FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
JULY 1, 2007 —~ JUNE 30, 2008

: . —
REPORTABLE COMPLIANCE AND OTHER-MATTERS

o

Finding 1

Condition:

Criteria;

Lack of Internal Controls Over Cash Receipts - -
We noted the following lack of internal controls over cash receipts:

e FSU does not have an institution-wide policy andfor procedure for the
control and documentation of receipts.
Pre-numbered receipts are not issued for all cash collections.
Some collection points.are not recording cash and cash equivalents on a
- datly hasis detalling at minimum the date received, payee, check number or
cash receipt number, amount, and.purpose,
Mail logs are not completed to documert receipts.
-.Some department callections are not-deposited intact.
Money is collected but not counted until the next business day.
Monies awaiting deposittollected at collection points are not recorded on a
* standardized cash count sheet or tracking sheet.

e+ The numbers of all tickets ‘printed. and sold are not tracked on a -

standardized ticket sheet. - :
e FSU management does not properly oversee or control the Imprest Funds
“maintained by some of the individual departments.

e We noted three dut-of 12 or-25% of the cash count locations totaling
$389.32 were not properly safeguarding their securities.

e Media Gtides are professuonally pnnted programs that tell about the
school, specific sports programs, and the coaches. Media Guides are
produced for Football, Men’s Basketball, Women’s Basketball, and
Volleyball; - however, there are ‘no dccoiunting records produced or
maintained to reconcile or account for medla gu:de revenue in the amount
of $700 00. - :

e FSU wWas not performing reconmllatlons on some recemts of cash and cash

_'equwalents ' t
* " 'We noted one parkmg lot dtténdant collects all of the parking lot monies in
' the amount of $390.00.

"« “We'noted one iinauthorized Imprest Fund operated by the Student Health

Department.
W.Va. Code §5A-8-9, as amended, statés in part:
7] he head of each aggg_cf shall:
(a) Est"aﬁlish and ?nai'lit%in an active, continuing program

“for the economlcal and efficiént management of the
records of the agency.

-16 -



Cause:

{b) Make -and maintain records containing adequate and
proper documentation of the organization, functions,
policies, decisions, procedures and essential transactions
of the agency designed to furnish information to protect
the legal and financial rights of the state and of persons
directly affected by the agency's activities....”

W.Va. Code §12-2-2, states in part:

{a} “All officials and employees of the state authorized by
statute to accept moneys due the State of West
Virginia' shall keep a dally itemized record of moneys
received for deposit...”

State Treasurer's Office Legislative Rule Titls 112, Series 3
Establishment of Imprest Funds from the Secretary of State's Code
of State Rules states in part: - :
.-“3:1. Any state agency requiring the establishment of an
. -Imprest Fund shall make application to the Treasurer on
. the forms prescribed - by- him or her. The forms shall
" indicate the name, purpose, desired balance of the Imprest
Fund, physical location, and the person responsible for the
Imprest Fund as well as the agency name. Upon being
satisfied that the application is complete and that the need
for the Imprest Fund iswalid, the Treasurer shall notify the
agency of the approval for establishment of the Imprest
Fund. The Treasurer shall also notify the State Auditor and
. Legislatlve Auditor by sending them copies of a guarterly
report listing all funds approved.”

The Directoul of Occupational Sa_fety/Chi'ef‘of Police stated the Imprest Fund
monies are not recorded on a cash count form. The Director of Student Affairs
and the Director of Student Activities stated:that the money is collected;

Jowever, it is not counted until the next business day. Whenever the money is

counted the next business day, it is only recorded on a deposit ticket.and not on

~a standardized cash count collectmn form. The Student Affairs and Activities

utjlize a notebook to track ticket sales which is not maintained after the deposit
is made. The Student Health Center stated they no longer charge for their
services; therefore, they no ionger collect revenues

The Copy Center. Program Assistant stated, ‘throughout the work day, someone
is always present in the Copy Center to safeguard the lock box”. The Library
Assistant | stated, “the cash_is maintained in a cash box and is locked in a desk
drawer each night and there are only two employees that have keys to this desk
drawer”. The Falcon Center Director stated, “access to the safe, startup money,
and extra change is limited to the four (4) managers and four {4) student
supervisors. There is one Key for each lock bag and it is maintained in the safe”.

FSU’s Athletic Director stated they sell approximately 70 Media Guides per year
for $10. He stated they do not account for Media Guides because when the
; -17-



Effect:

Recommendation:

coaches visit prospective athletes, most of the Media Guides are given out as a
way to encourage a recruit to consider playing sports for FSU; however, we
believe there should be an accounting/reconciliation of all Media Guides
whether they are given away and/or sold.

The Athletic Director also stated they no longer have the parking attendant
collecting any monles

The Director of thé-Student Health Department stated FSU’s Student Health
Department no longer accepts monies and all their services are paid for in the
students tuition and fees.

“*FSU had deposits of $42,212;796.51 in fiscal year 2008. Not having an

institution-wide policy and procedure for documenting and collecting revenues,
there is no consistency betwieen departments for the collection and depositing
of monies and in some instances no” aidit trail maintained. When receipts are
not-issued for all coliections,’there is no'way+o venfy thiat the monies collected

‘were deposited in full. When collectivns are not recorded on a daily basis,
-management and/or auditors ‘are :inable to venfv that the collections were
~ authorizéd to be collected and. if the ‘monies were deposited intact and timely.

If money is ¢ollected and riot ‘¢olintisd ‘at the site of dollection, this may allow
employees to lose or not report money collected. If the number of tickets sold
is not tracked on a standardized form, this may allow emp[oyees 16 keep funds

: thm‘sshould be counted as part of ticket sa[es and to mtscalculate the amount-of

- verify or det_ermlne if the proper amount was depossted Without proper
management over site, the passibility exists-that‘allows employees to operate in
an environrnen,t- that Is susceptible to theftend/dr fraud.

b

- Bynat. properly safeguardmg recelpts they are more susceptible to theft and

fraud. ' -+

By not accounting for. all Media - Guides, there could be sales that are never
recognized- by the Athletic Department. -In addition, having one parking lot

- attendant collect all-the montes, there-is a greater risk of theft and/or fraud to

accur.

~ By not having the same amount of start-lip monies when operating an Imprest

Fund, deposits are not being made intact. -

.

"We recomimend FSU develop an institution-wide pélicy and procedure for the’

collection, counting, safeguarding, and depositing revenues at the Imprest Fund
level and all cash collection points. We also recommend that FSU management
perform random audits to review the Imprest Funds maintained by individual
departments. In addition, we recommend that-FSU comply with W.va. Code
§5A-8-9 and strengthen internal controls over’ cash' collections at all cash
collection points and Imprest Funds by‘implementing cash count sheets, ticket

- tratking sheets, cash and cash equivalent logs, and mail logs.

-18 -



Spending Unit’s
Response:

We also recommend FSU strengthen controls over the Student Health
Department in the event they begin collecting monias again.

We also recommend FSU comply with W.Va. Code §5A-8-9 by properly

safeguarding all monies.

In addition, we recommend FSU comply with the W.Va. Code §5A-8-% by pre-
numbering all Media Guides. This way they can segregate and account for alf of
the Media Guides that are sold and not'sold. In.addition, when students are
selling the, Medla Guides they will be able to determine the amount of Media
Guides the student has on hand to sell and the amount of monies that needs to
be remitted to the Athletic Department. Also, accounting for any FSU
publications sold .in the_same manner as the recommendation for the
aforementioned. Media-Guides. We recommend FSU perform reconciliations on
all recelpts of cash and cash equivalents, We also recommend FSU segregate

- key accountlng functions, such as: (1) receiving payments, (2) processing/filling
* orders, (3) recordmg payments in the accounting records, and (4) reconciling

accounting records to deposits. Last we recommend FSU comply with the State
Treasurer’s. Office Legislative Rule Title 112, Series 3 Establishment of Imprest

. Funds from the Secretary, of State’s Code of State Rules and get all Imprest

Funds approved by the State Treasurer's Office.

FE T

: Fai;’mo'nt ﬁtate_ University will.refine the existing Procedure for Depositing Cash

Check Receipts to_assure an.audit trail is maintained. We will also provide
tralning to staff who are responsible for collecting and depositing monies and
are responsible for Imprest Funds, Falrmont State University has engaged an
audit firm to do, audits off our cash receipts processes. The first audit was dona
in September 2007 for fiscal year 2007and we plan to do another audit during

. the Fall of 2010. We will provide findings from this legislative audit to the audit

firm so review of these areas will be concentrated on.

We will document, and request in_our written procedures that where cash

reglsters do not- document collections of cash and-cash equivalents that mail

logs, cash receipt: forms, and logs must be used for audit trails on all collections.
abe .

it should be recognized that the majority of revenues cotlected by FSU are for

. student fees and these fees are collected centrally. Attached Table 1 shows a

breakdown of revenues collected centrally and by departments. Collections are
to be deposits within 24 hours to the Central Business Operations as stated in
the Procedure for Depositing Cash/Chacks. which was updated and distributed
campus-wxde in February 2010. We expect departrnents to comply with this
rule. . -

, We recognize that a few departments have not been practicing proper cash

receipting and documenting same. Those departments will be a focus of our
training to comply with W.Va. Code 12-2-2. While we recognize some areas of
weakness we feel that the vast majority of our revenue/cash collection follow
State Treasurer's Code.

-19-



Summary of Depaosits

O 1) 4 L. e e e s e o
Total Deposits . ,42,212,796.51

Total Student A/R Deposits 32,726,434.70 77.53%
Total Departmental Deposits 9,486,361.81 22.47%

* Departmental Deposits only consist

of.22,47% of the institutions total deposits,

+

 Number of} . Average

WO rk Study

Total of Percentage of
Depositing Group - : .+ Deposits -Déposit - - Deposits Total Deposits
Gear-Up R r-o310 169,802:84 - | 5,263,887.94 12.47%
Various State and Federal Grants “i09 '9,848i02" 1,073,434.24 2.54%
Bookstore and Dining Vendor 4 190,663.07 762,652.28 1.81%
Aladdin Salary crearmg .14 | 01996258 | 269,676.11 0.64%

g od Leé' Gl:a z.
ks :

UHC Agreement.

Financial Aid Admin Fees

58,926.00

dd' Salary Reimbursment

_38,000.00

U



Finding 2

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

-'Effect:

Recommendation:

-

e

_S_peridlng Unit's
Response:

Unapproved Course Fees k:harged to Student’s Accounts

We noted two out of 50 instances or 4% of the items tested where students
were charged unapproved Graphics Technology Course fees in the amount of
$246.00 that was not approved by FSU’s Board of Governors (BOG).

W.Va, Code §18B-10-1(e) states:

“The sthedule of all tuition and fees, and any changes in
the schedule, shall be entered in the minufes of the
meeting of the appropriate governing board and the
board shall file with the commission or council, or both,
as approprlate, and the_ Legistative Auditor a certified
copy of the schedule and changes.”

FSU’s Vice Presudent of Admlmstrative and Fascal Affalrs stated that he had
received an e—mall requesting the approval for the Graphics Course fee;
however, he had not prepared the fee request for presentation to the BOG so_
that the fee 'could be approved The unapproved fee was manualiy mputted

" -into the Banner System by enrollment services and charged to student’s

accounts in expectatlon that the fee would soon ba apprdved
Without FSU's BOG’s approval 41 students were charged a total of $5 166 oD
for this unauthonzed and unapproved fee.

pe

'We recommend FSU comiply \mth W. Va Gode: §18B-10-1(e) and- have the fee

approved by FSU's BOG or cease collecting the fee.

Student tuntlon and fee assessments as stated m W\[a Code 183 10-1(e)
requiré the approval of the approprlate governing boards before assessment for
these fees are allowed. The Vice President of Admlmstrative and Flscal Affairs

'__. recognized that the Graphn:s Technology Course Fee was -assessed. without
~ Board approval The Graphics -Course Fee is no longer assessed and stopped
. bemg assessed, effectlve SummerTerm 2009, -

-21-



Finding 3

Condition:

Deposits Not Made Timely

We noted FSU was not performing deposits within 24 hours as required by West
Virginia Code detailed in the following table:

Test/Department # of Items Tested | Noncompliance % Amount Range of Days Held
Revenues 149 17% '$271,066.10 3-15 )
Imprest Funds 12 ., .25% ds 302891 N/A
Athletic Revenues -N/A . N/A S 2,330.16 N/A
Business Office Safe . N/A N/A S  500.00 N/A
Athletic Gate Receipts 10 80% S 7,568.00 1-7

' "TOTAL | |..$284,453.17

Criteria: W.Va. Code §12-2-2 states in part:
“...All officials and employees of the state authorized by statute
to accept monies due the state of West Virginia shall keep a
daily itemized record of moneys received for deposit in the
State Treasury and shall deposit within twenty-four hours with
the state treasurer all monies received or collected by them for
or on behalf of the state for any purpose whatsoever....”
{Emphasis Added)}
Cause: FSU’'s Procedure for Depositing Cash/Check Receipts dated November 5, 2007
states in part, “...Cash and checks MUST be deposited timely to the Central
Business Operations {daily if volumes warrant it). Deposits should be made no
tater than once a week...”
The Athletic Director stated, “sometimes there are multiple games scheduled in
a four or five day period. The ticket receipts are maintained in the safe for up to
four or five days until all the games are played, then all the money is deposited
at one time.”
FSU’'s PRG ASST II, Student Accounts, stated, “a deposit on hand from the
procurement section that had not been fully collected was on hand in the safe
and they were awaiting the remaining portion of the deposit from the
procurement section so the entire amount could be deposited.”
FSU’s Director of Occupational Safety/Chief of Police stated, “when the coins
are removed from the parking bins they are supposed to be deposited.”
The Student Health Department Director stated, “we hold some monies from
deposits to make change for the following day.”
Effect: When monies are not deposited timely and in their entirety, there is a greater

risk that they may be misplaced or stolen. In addition, by not depositing these

monies timely, FSU Is losing interest it could be earning on these monies. When

monies are not deposited daily, the monies are more susceptible to theft. In

one instance, a moneybag containing numerous days’ collections was reported

missing and the staff did not recognize it was missing until 17 days later. After
~22-




Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response:

further investigation, the staff could not identify when it became missing due to
lack of daily depositing.

We recommend that Fairmont State University comply with W.Va. Code §12-2-2
by depositing all monies within 24 hours.

We agree that when monies are not deposited timely and in their entirety,

there is a greater risk that receipts may be misplaced or stolen and a loss of -
interest can occur. Our policy was updated during February 2010 to require all
deposits, regardless of size must be deposited within 24 hours to the Céntrg;ﬂ
Business Operations. As stated in our response to Finding 1, we will be doing an
additional update to the Procedure for Depositing Cash/Check Recelpts. We will
also provide training to the departments to comply with W.Va. Code 12-2-2.

.23



Finding 4

Caondition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response!

Assets Not Properly Recorded on Inventory Listing

We noted one out of 105 or 1% of the transactions tested where a DS4000
Expansion Unit Model 81 (Disk Drive Storage Unit} was purchased on
09/06/2007 with an original cost of $7,034.00; however, it was not recorded on
FSW's Fixed Asset Inventory listing.

Section 9, Subsection 3, Paragraph 3 of the West Virginia Higher Education-

Purchasing Procedures Manual states in part:

“a. Account for afl equipment and furnishings with a value at
the time of purchase of 55,000.00 or more per unit...”

FSU’s, Accountant stated when the equipment is purchased on the P-card,
sometimes the account code assigned by the purchasing department prevents
the asset from belng recorded on the asset inventory, because the account code
is improperly assigned; therefore, the Accounting department has no record of
the acquisition.

FSU's inventory is understated by $7,034.00 because the asset was not entered
into the FSU's Fixed Assets Inventory System. Also, without properly recording
the asset on the Fixed Assets Inventory System, this asset with an acaquisition
cost.of $7,034.00 will not be properly retired.

We recommend FSU comply with the West Virginia Higher Education Purchasing
Procedures Manual and properly account for all assets in their possession. We
also recommend FSU develop a policy and procedure to ensure all assets are
properly eoded and recorded.

Fairmont State University utilizes the Banner Fixed Asset module to record,
capitalize and depreciate assets over $5,000. Assets over 55,000 are coded with
specific account codes at the time of purchase. The Accountant runs an extract
process that transfers the properly coded assets to the Banner Fixed Asset
Module. The Procurement Office audits the departments transactions to insure
proper account codes have been used. Also, Accounting extracts payment data
at year end for certain actount codes and reviews inveices to ldentify any
additlonal fixed assets. We believe that our procedures comply with the West

Virginia Higher Education Purchasing Manual. We also follow procedures to

ensure assets are properly coded.

During fiscal year 2010, we completed a physical inventory of our fixed assets.
We also completed the accounting transaction necessary to comply with the
Separation af Assets and Liabilities Agreement between Fairmont State
University and Pierpont Community and Technical College. We believe that our
fixed asset records are complete and accurate as of June 30, 2010.

-24-



In regard to the one item found, it was not properly coded as a capital asset
purchase and therefore, not identified as a equipment to be capitalized. We
consider this an isolated incident.

-25-

Wt



Finding 5

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Lack of Supporting Documentation

We noted the following:

12 out of 58 or 21% of the employees tested totaling $1,741.38 where

FSU falled to maintain adequate tax withholding documentation;

therefore, we were unable to determine if the employee was paid the
proper amount and if FSU matched the correct amount of taxes.’

Six out of 15 or 40% of the employees tested totaling $523.16 where

FSU failed to maintain proper supporiing documentation in the

employees’ payroll file; therefore, we were unable to determine if the

employee was paid the proper amount and if the payroll deductions

. were properly authorized and/or calculated.

One aut of 58 or 2% of the employees tested where FSU did not
properly calculate WV State withholding taxes according to the WVIT-

.104 maintained in the employee’sfile in the amount of $31.76.

Three out of 149 or 2% of the transactions tested totaling $276.95
where the spending unit falled to maintain adequate documentation
supporting the amount of monies received for deposit and
reconciliations were not performed.

W.va. Code §5A-8-9 states in part:

"The head of each agency shall: ... {b) Make and maintain
records containing adequate and proper documentation of the
organization, functions, policies, decisions, procedures and
essential transactions of the agency designated to furnish
information to protect the legal and financial rights of the state
and of persons directly affected by the agency's activities....”

W.Va. Code §21-5C-5 states in part:

“Every employer subject to the provisions of this article shall
make or cause to be made, and shall keep and preserve at his
place of business for a period of two years, a written record or
records of the name and address of each of his employees as
herein defined, his rate of pay, hours of employment, payrcll
deductions, and amount paid him for each pay period.”

The Director of Payroll stated FSU was unable to locate the documentation.,
Regarding the $276.95, the Interim Chief of Police stated receipts are not issued
for departmentai token purchases.

By not maintaining proper tax documentation, we are unable to determine if
the proper amount was authorized and/or withheld from the employee’s pay.

By not maintaining adequate payroll deduction forms, employees could have
their salary reduced for unauthorized deductions.

-26-



Recommendation:

Spending Unit’s
Response:

By not maintaining proper supporting documentation and not performing
reconciliations for cash-receipts, we were unable to determine the number of
parking tokens sold and if the proper amount was collected and deposited.

Without proper supporting documentation, there is no way to reconclle
receipts.

We recomtmend that FSU comply with W.Va. Code §5A-8-9 and W.Va. Code §21-~,
5C-5 and maintain any supporting dotumentation that accompanies the -
transactions. )

In regard to the three deposits totaling $276.95, departments will be reminded
follow the Procedure for Depositing Cash/Check Receipts. This procedure
instructs the departments to “attach supporting documentation to yellow

validated deposit ticket and keep for your files.” The deposit procedures were

updated in February 2010 and sent electronically in a campus wide e~-mail.

We feel that the majority of our departments-comply with the procedure.

In regard to the payroll issues, the payroll office will now request employees to
complete new employee forms — I-9, federal withholding and state withholding
when they are hired full-time from a part-time position. These forms will be
placed in the full-time employee file maintained by the payroll / benefit office.

-27-



Finding 6

Condition:

Criteria:,

Cause:

Effect:

Documenting and Safeguarding Evidence

We noted no documentation was produced or maintained by FSU for an
undisclosed amount of confiscated marijuana and two (2) confiscated air pistols
located in the file cabinet drawer along with the $200 Imprest Fund for the
Parking Garage coin meters. Evidence is collected, seized, or received by
members of the Public Safety Office (PSO} in order to prove the existence or,
non-existence of a fact.. In order to protect the integrity of evidence and ensure -
its admissibility in court, it is crucial that records document how the evidence
was obtained, who handled the evidence, and it's ultimate disposition (if
applicable). While documenting the busmess precedures of the PSQ, the
Director of Occupational Safety/Chief of Police stated FSU's procedures instruct
PSO staff on how evidence should he safeguarded, documented, and
subsequently either destroyed, disposed, forfeited, or released to the owner.
During our audit of FSU’s PSQ, we noted no documentation had been produced
or maintained for the pericd under audit; therefore, we were unable to audit

- the P50's: ewdence maintenance and seci rlty

WVa Code §5A- 8-9 as amended states in part' S
[ RS PRI
mThe head of each- agency shal[
(a) Establlsh and mamtam an actlve contmumg program
for the economical and efficient management of the
records of the agency.

(b) Make and maintain records containing adequate and
proper documentation of the organization, functions,
policies, decisions, procedures and essential transactions
of the agency designed to furnish information to protect
the legal and financial rights of the state and of persons
directly affected by the agency’s activities....”

The Director of Occupational Safety/Chief of Police stated the Post Audit
procedures he signed- as correct and FSU’s Public Safety Division have never
been performed since became employed. He stated no documentation has
been generated regarding evidence collection. We performed our cash count
on October 29, 2008 where we were made aware of two confiscated air pistols
and an undisclosed amount of marijuana in the file cabinet drawer.

As of October 28, 2009, the Director of Occupational Safety/Chief of Police
stated the alr pistols were still on hand; however, the marijuana was released to
the Three Rivers Drug Task Force, He stated no disposition documentation was
generated or maintained to support who recelved the marijuana and how it was
disposed of. Improper documentation limits an items ability to be traced and
accounted for, ltems that cannot be accounted for may cause suspicion of theft
or misappropriation.

.28-



Recommendation:

Spending Unit’s
Response:

We recommend FSU develop written policies and procedures for documenting,
safeguarding, and subsequently- either destroying, disposing, forfeiting, or
releasing evidence. We also recommend FSU comply with W.Va. Code §5A-8-9
and strengthen controls over evidence,

We agree that safeguarding evidence and documenting the destruction of,

- disposing of, forfeiting of, or the release of evidence is necessary. Written,

procedures and appropriate forms for the tracking of evidence will be’
rmaintained in the future,

As of January 1, 2010 an evidence room has been established. Only Chief
Bradiey and Officer Swain have access to the evidence room. Please find
enclosed copies of log sheets and chain of custody in reference to evidence, as
well as release forms: Certified officers with 'crin_le scene investigation training
are the only individuals who handle the evidence.

i

Past evidence handled by prior Chief of Police William Bickerstaff cannot be
accounted for and current Chief Bradiey can only be accountable for evidence
submitted as of January-1,2010. All evidence is held in the evidence room and
logged. Evidence is not kept in any other part of the office.

Policy of documenting and handhng of e\ndence is in the process of being

updated. . . St

SEE ATTACHMENTS

-29.



X

SINTWINOD

»

ot

A

ONILVS]

T

 ———

-:\me
L0 3O o

D0TAINIAIAT

ALEEVS O T e
S OFTE0] X0 INSWLEVEG

TobasF AL
) mo.. wid §,

4o /175
INT )

-30-



EVIDENCE Offense No.

Evidence Description

Place Evidence found

Date & time of recovery '

Suspect ‘Offense. "

Evidence recovered by, :

(signature required)
CHAIN OF POSSESSION OF EVIDENCE
o . {Signatures required) .
From . I

Io . - Date Time

-31-




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
RAIRMONT STATE
PROPERTY RELEASE FORMS

REFPORTING PERSON
NAME __
ADDRESS

TELEPRONE__

DATE TIME,

Description of Xtem

RELEASING OFFICER,

OFFICER.

(simamrégégn ey’
DATE TIME____ -, ¥

CASE]
(if applicable)

RELEASED TO ' T DATE TIME,

Signature Required)
ADDRESS

TELEPHONE

-32-

i I‘)'



- = Se00/ D] A AR ES
= gL AT 7
| A . s -
_ LA ez L9
N " St oloE LTS 2_# T _/,na. T\R(T0
500 00 QInf domﬂom 9.,/3.16 m},nd 7
T | 1558, 07 : .2/5.1 3.1_7
SUNLINDIS MH'OMW.MO _ HAGHOR F5VD m...m.mrxbz 30T mUzmh_H.bm AdING 30 FIND ﬂz..ﬂloleH JAX Blud

popia7

§.¢ 507 SOAZ0IAS '
.: [N S

Ju4 LI A |

_.w NG w,ﬁz v ]

S X S .ﬂu..muﬁ..ﬂv\h...i



 FAIRMONT

STATE UNIVERSITY.

PIERPONT
COMMUNMITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SATETY

EV]DENCE LOG

CASE #: EVIDENCE 106 Heod® /G OC0 57
EVIDENCE DESCRIPTION:

LOCATION EVIDENCE whs FOUND:
My e ol A
DATE OF RECOVERY: Jf//ﬁz’f?ﬁ

TIME O RECOVERY: /7 ‘/’j’éa

SUSPECT: _, )
R Fe -, Vi
OFFENSE:
L /
VIETIM: S ¢ _ -
RECOVERING OFFICER:

CHAIN OF CUSTODY
QFFICER RELFASER TN DATE/TIME

___%&49-:.
B R /0 |

-4 -




Finding 7

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response:

Unauthorized Refunds

We noted five out of 50 or 10% of the items tested where students’ were
refunded non-refundable course fees equaling $272.10.

Fairmont State University's 2007 — 2008 Catalogue states in part:

“.Special Fees (Non-Refundable) — Applicable To All
Students...Course Fee {per credit hour)...54.00”

The Vice Prestdent of Fiscal Affairs, stated that he was aware of course fees
being refunded, but was unaware that the FSU 2007-2008 Catalogue cited all
special fees, including course fees, as non-refundable fees. He stated the
catalogue would be updated and course fees removed off the non-refundable
fees.

By refunding non-refundable fees to student accounts, the University is losing
revenues.

We recommend FSU coi‘npl;j with ;che appropriate FSU Catalogue and

discontinue refunding course fees or update their catalogue to reflect the
change.

The 2010-2011 catalog has been updated to remove course fees from the non-
refundable listing. Please see the attached copies of pages from the 2010-2011
catalog and the 2007-2008 catalog.

SEE ATTACHMENTS

-35-



Expenses and Financial Aid

PAYMENTOF TUFTION AND FEES

Students attending FSU or Flerponit are
offered an alternetive to payment In Full at
the me of registration. This payment plan
Is known as the Faleraont State Instaliment
Plan Service, or FIPS. This allows students to
pay thele balance in four equal payments. If
payment is not received before the due date
each month, 8 $25 Iate fee will be sdded to
the acoount, The registration process is not
complete until aN fees, plus interest and/
or any penalties, have been pald in full,
Fees can be pald with Visa, MasterCacd,
Americaty Bxpress and  Discover’ Card,
Students recelving fnancial ald must
apply 100 percent of thelr ald prior to FIPS
psyments. .

" Registralion is nof completed unkl
paymenz of hition, residence hell yeat,
board, and fecs has dlgared. A Jate payment
charge of $50 wil be asseiced on the fimt
day of class; » 510 charge will be assessed
an cvach cheek Tetumed for “nsuffident
funds™ unfess the shudent can obtain an
sdmisslor: of emor on the part of the bank,
The Office of Enrallment Services shall
declare the fees unpald and registration
anceled untl the check has been redeemed
and the additional charge paid. Student
records will not be refeased by the Office
of Enroliment Services for any student who
has o delinquent financial obligation to
either Institution,

* All outstanding amounts resulting fom.
nonpayment of kuition and fees awe the
responsibilly of the student Withdmwal
from school, ofiicially or unofficially, will

. not cagoel-any finandal ehligation atteady
incurred. Additionally, fRflure o pay all
financial chligations may result in debls
being tumed over to a collection agency.
Collection costs, including attomey fees and
other charges necessary for the eollection
of any amount due, will be added 1o the
stadent’s account balance. -

NOTE: The tem “msbdent® mefirs o
dassification, for foe puiposes oly, See ed of
this soctian Jor resldent cluss[fientions.

All fees subfect bo dhange. Please s our
EBomepage for the snost ciarent tultion and foe
Enformation, )

Please roxonber that Bllls nre 10 longer
befing seut vl nedl, bat billing information,
reminders and Lnporinnt nollces ane sent to
ok student’s instilutiomal e-mail addvess.

20102011 Cabalog

Tuition and Fees 0102011

PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE
TUITION & FEES PER _SEMBTER

SRR 1 i eV Je o SOt SO
12 B0 e eeesmian 1826 csmar s 4332 s 15AB 151 srrrrers 1365 o 2568

11U et 1724 4015, 1537, 3B 125 e 2356
10 BOt1$ covrme.. 1570, 3550 1400, - — T S
$houa, 1413, 3285, 1260, 3182, 1026 s menn 1926
B hoursne..~. 1256. 2920, 1120, m 2T Nnz_....1712
7 DO S rremr0aa 1099 2555 480, 2436, o —
6 RS e 42 e 210 240, 2008 684 1284
Shouss_ . ._785 1835, 200, 174D 7 |7
L3 T—-T 1440 560, 1352 456, 55
-7 1035 420, 1044 342 642
2hours. .34 730 280, 6%, 7] 428
1bour 157 365, 149, HE 116 e
FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
TUINON & FEES PER SEMESTER .
o O
vy e ety e s N SO o
+ 12 bourse... 2586, 5452 2297 5163 2017, 3216
11 hosits ... 2373, 4994 2131 4752 1648, 2548
10 howesfon Z2160..." 4540 1540, 4320 1680, 2680
ET T A85 1745 3688 1512 o 2412
B hOUTS uas i 1728 32 552 3456 1344, 2144,
7 OIS s 1512: 3178 1358, 3024 1176, 1826
6 honint o106, Vo TR, T 2592, 1008 oo 1608
5 hotms 1080, 2278, 570, 2160, B840, 1340
4O oo BGS, 1616 5776 1728 57202072
3 O, e BB e 1R S8 1296, 504 [N
-1 T — 908, 368, Bt 336, 534
1haur 215 451, M Axz 168 2B
GRADUATE COLLEGE
TUITION & FEES PER SEMESTER .
QaCimgps  OaCam Off [ ‘Wizl Vielual
WV Rwldetdl  Mov WY oot k| sl WV Kisldon] Non-Reskfeat
8 houss. ... 2810. B sospora T messsrsesn SO poa s 286, 3OO
B ALY s 24 5320,.2,. o 2256 5088, 1928 278
T IMLS e 27T, 455 2574 !
[ T — T S T 815, ds. 2086
5 0K, e 1555, 3325 410 B0 mresrrrs 1205 e 1705
AU s 284, e oms 260 e 1128, 2544 254 64
a ) 1995 B 1508 74 03
[T —— 1330 564 1972 482 652
1haue 311 &85 28 £36, 241 an

!

SPECIAL FEES {NON-REFUNDABLE) - APPLICABLE TO
ALL STUDENTS
New Stsdznt Qrfentation Pee £120,00

Greduation Fee (Inc. cap and gown) $50.00
* Spedial course fecs ntay apply

Expersses and Fluancial Ald 21

-36-

<
o
E
g
2
5]




Expenses and Financial Aid

PAYMENT OF TUITION AND FEES

Students attending Falrmont State Universily are
offered an altemative to payment in full at the time
of registration. This payment plan is known as the
Halrmont State Instaltment Plan Service, oc FIFS,
‘This allows students ta pay thelr balance In four
equal payments. Jf payment {5 not recefved before
the due date each month, 2§25 late fee will be
added Lo the scoount, The mgistration process Is pat
complete uniil all fees, phusinterest endfor any pen-
alties, have been paid in full. Fees can be paid with
Visa, MasterCard, Ameriean Bepress and Discover

Card, Sludmtstendvlngﬂmndal ald must apply
100 pereent of thelr ald prior to FIPS payments.

Registation is not completed until payment
of tultion, residemer hall rent, board, and fees hes
cleated, ATate payment charge of $50 will be as-
sested on the flrst day of class; 2 $10 charge will be
assessed an each check returned for”Insufficient
funds*unless the stident can obtIn an admis-
slon of ewvor on the part of the bank. Thve Student
Accounts Office shall dedare the feesunpald and
Tegistration canceled until the check has been
vedeemed and the additional charge pald. Student
recards will not be released by the Registrar's Of-
fice for any student who has a delinquent financial
abligation to Faimnont State.

All putstanding ameunts resulting frot non-
payment of tultion and fees are the responsibility
of Lhe student. Withdrawal from school, officially
or unofficially, will not cance] any financial abliga-
tion atready incurred. Additlonally, failure topay
all financlal obligations may result in debls being
tumed ovér b a collection agency. Collection costs,
Includirig attorney feesand other charges necessary
for the collection of any smount due, will beadded
to the student’s acoeimnt balince.

NOTE: The term *restdeat” refers bo dassifioation for
foe pitrposes only, Sec end oﬂhr‘ssmr,brm:dnu
dassifictions.

All fees subject to chenge. P!mesceFaMnmeW:
Fotiepage for most airreat tuition and fee it formation.
Please renteniber that bills are 1o fonger befisg sént vie
wtid, bat billing informaion, reminders and important
notiees are genk o each shudent’s Fainmeit Slafe gener-
ated e-mati] address.

2007-2008 Cotalog

Bhouts. . 2155
Fhours...... 188, 4,018 112

Tuition and Fees ’

PIERPONT COMBUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE

TUITION & FEES PER SEMESTER
. DaCwpu  Oa ol ‘oHowrs v Vieual
WiResldcnt Non ml WV Nos-fesldm] WYNoided Mon-Rekdeal

12 HOWF e $170 o 3,79 ST 502 e FB 5B $1,260 o $2AED
1 hgm,,___‘!,'jyl 3508, 1.3%6. 3310, 1185 2255
0 hours 1,450 e o3 190 mrrn s 3, 2 e 3010 e e 1050 e 2,050
9hous....1,305 .. 2871 1,143 2,709 CTC NN L
8 hours....1, 150, 2,552 1,016. 2408 £40 1,640

7 hoans.....1,015. 2,233 829, 2,107, 735 1435
6 hotwrs.... 870, 514 78 1,806 631,230
5 houts e 725, 1,595, 635, 1,505 L) S— 1.025
4 hauss.... 580 1270, 508 1,204 420
3 hours . d35 557 3 203 315 515
2hotirt . 290 838, 254, \602 20, 410
1hont e 145, 315, 127 30 108 05
FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSTTY
TUITION & FEES PER SEMESTER
OnCanpor  OffCompes G Crlnpua ;
wnuuuu Hom VWYRidest RHesfuldesy WMM Hﬂrlﬂ“ﬂ\l
12 hwnrrs.. 52,260 u,m_._‘..s?.m;._... $4,4811.0r $1,788 oo $2,988
N howrs,... 2067, 1,865, 4,324 1,699, 2735

30 houes...... 1,880 "930 1,700, 3,750, 1,490, 2490
9 hours..,.1 692 Lk 1530. 3375 1341 2241
Bhoxe......1 503 3144, 1,360, 3,000 1152 1992
7 howrs..... 1316 2,751 1199, Lo T | WY, §

& Loy 1175, 2358, 1,620, 2,250 BH. 1,494
Shotmy. 9401955 850, 1875, L S—
Ahows,n 350,20 1572 680, 1.5 L1 S
3 hour e 56 1,179 510, 3125 447, F47
2 hours, 376, 785, 240, 750 208, iz A98
1 hour 188, 393 170, 375, 149 249
GRADUVATE COLLEGE
TUITION & FEES PER SEMESTER
oll&ul'r waulienl mm Ha mnﬂﬂ Won-Rasdeat

SO F e 2L rrrrnas 55,187 v SN s S4B o 1690 §2,759

G X B ¥ | O ¥ - W—
BB e I 2177
Ghours,..., Lsiimm“aﬁﬁmuﬁnmmmuﬁmw

510U 138,20, 2755 e snmsn L1155
4 hoUbenn, 1,006, 229, 934, b ST 1244
3 hoUS e B, 1722 738 1,688 £33, 7o)
20D oo 538, 1,48 492 1,102 " 622
THORS e 285, 74 248 551 218 311

SPECIAL FEES {NON-REFUNDABLE) — APPLICABLE TO
ALL STUDENTS

New Student Orientation Pee $120.00
Graduation Fee (ine. cap and gawn). $50,00
Course Fee (per credit howr) $4.00
* Special course fres may apply

Expeusas aud Finanelal Ald 18

-37-

m
»
)
s
&
™
v
>
=
Q
-
z
P
2
[«]
r
-
n
v}




Finding 8

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response:

tncorrect Course Fees Charged to Students

We noted four out of 50 Instances or 8% of the items tested where FSU
overcharged students for fees in the amount of $46.00. We noted two out of
50 instances or {4%) where students were overcharged course fees totaling
$11.00 in overpayments. In addition, we noted two out of 50 instances or (4%)
where students were assessed an incorrect Baccalaureate Enhancement Fee
totaling $35:00 in overpayments.

Fairmont State University’s 2007 —~ 2008 Catalogue states in part:

“..Special Fees {(Non-Refundable} — Applicable To All Students: Course
Fee (per credit hour).....54.00...”

Fairmont State University'’s Board: of Governor's 2007 —.2008 approved fee
schedule, which states in part:

“..Course Fee (Per Credit Hour)‘(previously known as Technology
Fee).....$4.00 ..Community ‘Collége Baccalaureate Enhancement Fee
(Per Credit Hour) — Resident......$50.00.,..”

FSU’s Vice President of Administrative and Fiscal Affairs, stated, “the fee
schedules provided to the Auditors were the schedules that enrollment services
shiould have been referring to during the audit pergod".

By not performing thorough reviews of each charge that could be placed onto a
student’s account, students may be over or underchaiged.

We recommend §SU comply with the appropnate FSU catalogue and the
appropriate FSU Fee Planmng Schedtie for Spec[al Eees and Charges by charging
the corréct amount for, courses. In addlt!on, we recommend FSU perform
continuous testing of the information system fo ensure students are charged
correctly.

“The student fee assessments are generated by tables set up within the student
systemn. Ninety-nine plus percent of all fees are automatically created. We set
up the-fee tables based on Board Approved Fees and changes (usually once
every year prior to the assessment of Fall Semester fees).

Research indicates that these fees were incorrectly attached to individual
courses and inadvertently charged to the students. These have been corrected
and staff makes every effort to make sure that this does not happen. They are
aware that only approved fees may be attached to courses.

-38-



Finding 9

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response:

Timely Submission of Leave

Buring our audit of Sick and Annual Leéve, we noted three out of 30 or 10% of
employees tested in which employees turned in Leave Requests on average four
months after the Annual and Sick Leave was taken.

Fairmont State University’s Employse Handbook states in part:

« .Annual leave must be approved in advance by the supervisor.
Arnual leave shall be arranged to fit operating schedules;
however, consideration shall be given to an employee’s
request...”

Additionally, the Employee Leave Request Form states the following:

“This form is to be completed by employee and signed by
employee’s supervisor prior to taking annual leave or upon
return from sick leave.”

The Payroll Director stated the employee did not submit their leave timely.

By not submitting leave reguest timely, employees leave records are not
updated and current balances will remain incorrect until they are submitted. In
addition, this will provide an opportunity for employees to take leave that may
have not been accrued due to an overstatement in Annual or Sick Leave
balances.

We recommend FSU comply with the Employee Handbook and the Leave
Request Forms by requmng all employees to submit Annual Leave requests in
advance and to submit Sick Leave Requests immedlately following return to
work. In additiori, we recommend FSU to put in place a policy and procedure in
the employée handbook that informs the employees the correct procedure for
requesting and taking leave,

The employee handbook is being revised by a commitiee and we have asked
that the instructions at the top of the Leave Request form be added to the
handbook — Annual Leave request forms are to be completed by the employee
ond signed by the employee’s supervisor prior to taking annugl leave. Sick
Leave request forms are to be completed by.the employee and signed by the
emplayee’s supervisor upon return from sick leave. Qriginal Leave Request
forms are to be submitted to the Payroll Office immediately upon approval by
the Supervisor. A total of 329 employees submit. leave forms. Also, leave
balances are e-mailed to the employee supervisors monthly. A reminder to
submit Sick and Annual Leave forms immediately will be added to the
supervisors e-mail.

-39-



We will do our best to make sure employees and supervisors are submitting
Annual Leave in advance and Sick Leave requests immediately following the
employee’s return to work.

-4 -

L
el

1



Finding 10

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Leave Balance

We noted one out of 30 or 3% of employees tested where the employee’s Sick
Leave balance was negative in the amount of .5 days as of lune 30, 2008.
Additionally, Annual leave was not transferred to cover the negative Sick:Leave
balance and/or the employee was not taken off payroll. We also noted one out
of 30 or 3% of employees tested where their leave was improperly calculated
for a difference of one hour. - '

Section 2.3 of Higher Education Policy Commission Procedural Rule Title 133,
Series 38, Employee Leave, states in part:

“Annual and sick leave may not be taken before it is accrued. ¥ an
employee works less than a full month, annual and sick leave shall he
accumutlated on a pro rata basis.”

Additionally, section 5.7 states in part:

“In cases, except those involving catastrophic sick leave as
defined in Section 8.1, where all accumulated sick leave has
been used and annual leave is available, it shall be the option of
an employee either to use any accumulated annual leave until it
has also expired, rather than being removed from the payroll, or
to retain the accumulated annual leave for use after return to
work, but be taken off the payroll immediately after the
accumulated sick leave has expired.”

W.Va. Code §12-3-13 states:

“No money shall be drawn from the treasury to pay the salary
of any officer or employee before his services have been
rendered.”

The Director of Payroll stated when the Sick Leave balance becomes negative
they wait for the next month accruals to see if the negative balance is cleared.
If not, it is taken from the Annual leave. During this audit period, FSU’'s payroll
department received an “End of Month Leave Summary Update Log” that listed
employees who had overdrawn their Sick Leave. This report was monitored by
payroll and human resources were given a copy of the report if employees were
overdrawn on Sick Leave.” She also stated one hour of leave was miscalculated.

As of 06/30/2008 there were a total of five employees with a negative leave
balance. The average leave balance of those five employees was -0.4 annual
days and -0.1 sick days. If payroll waits one month and manitors the situation,
this allows employees to take additional leave that has not yet been earned.
This could result In overpayment to employees that should have been removed
from payroll. Also, improperly maintained Sick and Annual Leave balances could
result in employees receiving morefless days of leave than the employee is
entitled. Additionally, the employee may be underpaid or overpaid for lump
sum payments for any unused Annual Leave upon their retirement/resignation

-4 -



Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response:

or could adversely affect an employee’s retirement annuity or the amount of
extended health insurance coverage an employee would be entitled to receive
for any unused Sick Leave. '

We recommend FSU comply with proceduraf rule Title 133 Series 38 of the
Higher Education Policy Commission and have employees not take leave before

it is accrued. We also recommend FSU comply with procedural rule Title 133
Series 38 of the Higher Education Policy Commission and Annual Leave should -

be reduced in order to cover the Sick Leave overdrawn balance or an employee
should be required to go off payroll, In addition, we fecommend FSU maintain

‘accurate leave :balances. Also, we recominend FSU*i:ompIy with W.Va. Code

§12-3-13.

In the future, Annual / Sick leave negative balances will be adjusted prior to the
monthly leave close. If there is a negative annual and sick leave balance the
employee will be removed from payroll. Leave balances are emailed to the
employee supervisors monthly. Annual / Sick leave balances with less than 5

* days are highlighted in red on'the supervisor report.

-42.

[



Finding 11

Misclassified Expenditures

We noted six out of 198 or 3% of the items tested were coded incorrectly in the

code is:

Condition:
amount of $1,175.98 according to the West Virginia State Budget Office's
Expenditure Schedule. The six items noted are detailed in the chart below:
Object
Object Code )
- s Code | Description | Audited _ Audited
Transaction | Transaction | | per per Obiject .|. -Object Code
Date Amount Agency Agency Code Description
Training and
06/21/07 | $255.00 026 Travel 052 Development
Consultant Payments for
08/21/07 | $180.00 P 026 Travel 122 -| Capital Asset Projects-
R ’ . Co Consultant Payments for
- 08/21/07-| $192.00 026 Travel . 122 . Capital Asset Projects
_ ) ) | EE Training and
10/02/07 | $132.00 026 Travel | 052, Development
06/02/08 | $335.00 026 Trave! 029 Vehicle Rental
04/14/08 | S 81.98 D26 Travel 029 Vehicle Rental
Criteria: West Virginia Expenditure Schedule Instructions for Fiscal Year 2008, an object

“An expenditure classification; referring to the lowest and
most detailed state level of classification....”

West Virginia State Budget Office’s Expenditure Schedule Instructions for Fiscal

Year 2008, definitions for the pertinent object codes are as follows:

Travel {026): “Payments for authorized in-state and out-of-
state travel eéxpenses in accordance with the State Travel
Regulations as issuad by the Travel Management Office,
Diviston of Purchasing, Department of Administration and
other approved travel plans. ... Includes athletic travel,

team and associated individual trave

|."'
.

Vehicle Rental {029): “Auto, aireraft (i.e., fixed wing and
helicopter), farm eguipment ({off road) rental, earth
maoving, hauling, and DOH emergencies for snow/flood.”

"Training and Development {052): All costs that are associated
with the training, development, and education of an employes,
including those materials solely purchased for in-house training
(transparencies, films, videos, etc.); rental of training facilities;

video teleconferencing charges

education;

any professional

_43-

consulting  services

related to training and

in the




Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Spending Unit's
Response:

conducting of training; reimbursement of authorized travel
expenses (as allowed by the State Travel Regulations) incurred
while attending training seminars; and tuition reimbursements
for job related course work and IS&C site training fees.”...

Consultant Payments for Capital Asset Projects (122}): Fees for Services

by ctonsuitants (including architects and engineers) undertaking design,

contract inspection, etc. of capital asset projects.

The Accounts Payable Coordinator stated, “all on-campus travel is coded using
object code 025 (Contractual and Professional) and all off—campus travel is
coded using object code 026 {Travel)”

In addition, she stated “The contract was encumbered under object codes 122
and 026 anly. The invoice had the items under reimbursable and they did not
realize they were not travel items, it was an error on FSU’s part”.

By misclassifying expenditures under an incorrect object code, annual budgeted
amounts could be affected. In addition, financial statements could be
misstated.

We recommend that FSU comply with the West Virginia State Budget Office’s
Expenditure Schedule Instructions by ensuring that transactions are classified
with'the appropriate object codes.

Fairmont State Uriiversity concurs and wili comply. We are currently working
with the State Auditor's Office on implementing new Travel Software, To
ensure that all travel expenses are properh} classified, we will be establishing
within the software the appropriate account codes for all travel related
expenditures,

L4

1



STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

OFFICE OF THE LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR, TO WIiT:

|, Stacy L. Sneed, CPA, CICA, Director of the Legiélative Post Audit Division, do hereby -
certify that the report-appended hereto was made under my direction and supervision, under the
provisions of the W.Va. Code §4-2, as amended, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said

report. . o

Given under my hand this 20" dayof July 2010,

Stécv L. Sneéd, CPA,_,.CICA, Director
Legislative Post Audit Division

Copy forwarded to the Secretary of the Department of Administration to be filed as a
public record. Copies forwarded to the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission; Fairmont

State University; Governor; Attorney General; and State Auditor.

~45-






Pierpont Community and Technical College
Board of Governors

August 24, 2010

Item: Classified staff step increase progression to keep staff fully funded on
Mercer pay scale for years of service step.

Committee: Committee of the Whole

Information ktem Only
Staff Member: Dale Bradley

Background: In 2009 fiscal year all classified staff employees were brought to their
target salary on the Mercer pay scale authorized by the State Legislature
several years ago. This action was encouraged by both the Legislature
and the Higher Education Policy Commission.

Each year after full funding of the pay scale we should be providing years-
of-service step increases to classified staff up to the current 15 year
maximum step pay structure.

In June the Board of Governors approved the addition of new budget to
provide for the bringing of classified staff to the next step (year-of-
service) of the Mercer pay scale. i

This item is to inform the Board of Governors that the step increase will
be implemented in October 2010. Non-arrears employees will see their
step increase in the October 15" pay and arrears employees will see their
step increase in the October 31% pay,

Please be mindful that this does not provide step increase for all
classified employees, only those with less than 15 years of service. Step
increases will be given to 17 of the 27 classified staff members.

The Unrestricted, Restricted, and Auxiliary Fund budgets set aside for this
step increase are sufficient.

M

PCTC BOG August 2010 - Mercer Pay Scale Page 1







Pierpont Community and Technica! College
Board of Governors

August 24, 2010
ITEM: Update of Capital Projects for FY 2011
COMMITTEE: Committee of the Whole

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:

Be it resolved that the Board of Governors approves the attached updated E&G Capital Project plan for
FY 2011.

STAFF MEMBER: Dale Bradley
BACKGROUND:

East Bond funding for two additional projects has been provided. The Musick Library elevator and
Hardway Hall renovation have been added to the two projects we were hopeful to receive and already
included on our 2011 Capital Project list. Those projects were Turley Center renovation and Wallman
Hall renovation. Please find attached the updated E&G Capital Project list and narrative describing what
is planned in each project.

e
Update of Capital Projects for FY 2011 - BOG Report for August 2010 Pagel



CAPITAL PROJECTS

B er COmptadon DAte A ooVl praloN 7o

Requests far expressions of interest from architectural
{st;rd Center - HVAC Unlts $  60,000,00 - |8 50,000.00 | firms has been prepared and responses are due inon
8i27
Requests for expressians of inferest from architectural
Byrd Center - Root $  400,000.00 - |[$ 400,000.00 | firms has been prepared and responses ara dua in on
Renewal 827 -
Hardway Hall - HYAC Unit| $ 56,472.00 56,472.00 | § - Equipment to be Installed during week of August 2nd
Hunt Haught Hall Glass $  238,386.00 . |s 238388.00 Expressions of Interest are due from architectural firms
Front " o on7/28 g
Hunt Haught Hall - BVAC $  500,000.00 - |s 50000000 Expressions of Interest are due from architectural firms %
Units ' ' on7/28 o)
Concrete work on front porch has been completed, E
Intrastructure - Hardway Masonry work on sides of steps is approx. 50% c
Hall $  400,000.00 393,275.00 | § 6,725.00 complete, Wark continuas on terra cotta cleaningand | —
sealing.
Infrastructure - IT
Emergency Back-Up §  197,205.00 16,650.00 | § 180.,749.00 | Purchase order has been finalized with design firm.
Ivl:'far;:tructura -Retalning | o 130,000.00 9,000.00 |$ 121,000.00 | Purchase order has been finalized with desiga firm.
Infrastructure - Retaining
\Wall Merchant Strast &  176,000.00 3,60000 | $ 171,500.00 | Purchase order has been finalized with design firm.
[nfrastructure - Paving
Lot #15 $ 58,560.00 % 58,560.00
JLocust Avenue $ 40,000.00 - $ 40,000.00
Turloy Center .
Renovatlons % 6,000,000.00 $ 8,000,000.00 Bond Funding - Description Attached 8
w 5
allman Hall .
Renovations $ 5,200,000.00 - $ 5,200,000.00 Bond Funding - Descriplion Attached iln-'
Ew)
. [~
{musick Library Elevator | $ 2,000,000.00 - $ 2,000,000.00 Bond Funding - Description Attached =
Hardway Hall
Renovations $ 5,500,000.00 - $ 5,500,000.00 Bond Funding - Description Attached
Turley Center
Renovations - FF&E $  §50,000.00 - |$ 550000.00
Academic Fund $  100,060.00 - $ 100,000.00 On-going - Numerous projects lhrough-out year g’
O
Landscapling $ 100,000.00 13033.70 | 8 86,966.30 QOn-going - Numerous projects through-out year (?
c
I::":I:t: Plant - Small $ 197,000.00 2107.00 | § 194,883.00 On-golng - Numerous projects through-out year C
$21,386,245.00 437,465.70 $ 20,948,779.30

8/2/2010



Descriptions for EAST Bond Projects:

Turley Center: This project will consist of a complete interior gutting of the building back to the bare
structure. All existing mechanical and electrical will be removed. This space will become home for The
Student Access and Success Center. New office partitioning, along with new ceiling and floor finishes
will be installed throughout this facility.  All new plumbing, HVAC, and electrical systems will be
installed throughout this facility.

Musick Library Elevator: This project will consist of a new elevator to serve as ADA access to the Musick
Library. Currently, handicapped persons must access the library thru one of several
buildings......Education or Engineering Technology, to avoid traveling from the parking garage or the
Hunt Haught Hall parking lot. This elevator will be located on the west end of the library near the
entrance to the tunnel. Several utilities were roughed in for this when the inner campus walks were
completed. Elevator may have lobhy that ties into tunnel so that users will not have to go back out into
elements prior to entering the building.

Wallman Hall: This project will consist of complete overhau! of the mechanical and electrical systems.
More energy efficient hvac systern will be installed with new hoiler, chiller, VAV hoxes, temperature
control system, diffusers, ductwork, etc. New plumbing will include water saving fixtures and controls.
Electrical upgrades will include new switchgear, lighting with energy saving ballasts & bulbs, addressable
fire alarm system, etc. It is anticipated that new ceilings will be installed in certain areas as required for
the installation of these systems.

Hardway Hall: This project will also consist of complete overhaul of the mechanical and electrical
systems. More energy efficient hvac system will be instailed with new boiler, possible chiller, VAV
boxes, temperature control system, diffusers, ductwork, etc. New plumbing will include water saving
fixtures and controls. Electrical upgrades will include new switchgear, lighting with energy saving
ballasts & bulbs, addressable fire alarm system, etc. [t is anticipated that new ceilings will be installed in
certain areas as required for the installation of these systems. Window air conditioners will be removed
and more energy efficient windows may be installed if funds are available.






Pierpont Community & Technical College
Board of Governors

August 24, 2010

Item: FY2012 State Appropriation Request
Committee: Committee of the Whole
Informational Item

Staff Member: Dale Bradley

Background:

The supporting documentation related to our FY2012 State Appropriation Request was
unavailable by the publication deadline date. Information will be distributed at meeting.






Pierpont Community and Technical College
Board of Governors

August 24, 2010
ltem: FY 2012 Capital Appropriation Request
Committee: Committee of the Whole

Recommended Resolution: Be it resolved, that the Board of Governors approve the attached
updated E&G Capital Appropriation Request.

Staff Member: Dale Bradley and Jim Decker

Background: Annually prior to September 1% we are requested and required to submit
our capital project priorities that have a relation to the campus master
plan and we request funding for, or we plan to fund, and/or we have
been funded for and these funded projects are in-progress.

This prioritized list is evaluated by CTCC (HEPC) staff and is awarded a
state wide CTCC (HEPC) prioritized projects list for funding based on the
following categories:
¢ Code compliance projects receive the highest priority.
e Re-roofing and building envelope projects are the second highest
priority.
e HVAC and energy and utility improvements are the third highest
priority.
¢ Building and campus renewal (renovation) projects.
e New Buildings

There is no guarantee that the list being submitted will receive funding,
however, the recently funded projects provided to the University totaling
over 518,000,000 was a result of prior year submissions.

Please n;::te: The University and Community and Technical College are
required to submit separate and unduplicated projects to the CTCC
{HEPC) staff, however, our Separation of Assets Agreement requires us to
be jointly responsible for all Education and General buildings. Therefore,
the submissions on behalf of each institution are being reviewed and
approved by both institutions, (please reference the Separation of Assets
document {pages 5 & 6} section titled “Education and General Buildings
and Infrastructure”).

Please find attached recommended prioritized lists for both institutions
for your approval and the instructions provided by the CTCC (HEPC) staff.

X —
A BB I I BB A LI U A I e e  — 4 ™ ——

PCTC BOG August 2010 - Capital Appropriation Request for FY 2012 Page 1



Prioritized Capital Project lists will be provided as a handout at the meeting.

- e —— ]

PCTC BOG August 2010 - Capital Appropriations Request for FY 2012 Page 2




